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MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LIMITED 

CIN: L65929WB1990PLC048280 

Registered Office: 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata-7000069, India 

Corporate Office: 81, Functional Industrial Estate, Patparganj, Delhi -110092, India 

Email: info@mchl.co.in | Website: www.mchl.co.in | Tel.: 011-43041400 

 

 

NOTICE  

(Pursuant to Section 101 of the Companies Act, 2013) 

 

Dear Member, 

 

Notice is hereby given that the 35th Annual General Meeting “AGM” of the members of Marda 

Commercials & Holdings Limited “Company” will be held on Monday, the 29th day of July, 

2024 at 11.00 A.M. at the registered office of the company situated at 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare 

Street, Kolkata-7000069, India to transact the following business(es): - 

 

ORDINARY BUSINESS(ES) 

 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and 

Auditors thereon. 

 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Lalit Agarwal (DIN: 00109920) who retires by rotation 

in terms of Section 152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

 

SPECIAL BUSINESS(ES) 

 

3. Appointment of Ms. Ankita Mathpal (DIN: 10642403) as a Non-Executive Independent 

Director 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 

as a Special Resolution:  

 

mailto:info@mchl.co.in
http://www.mchl.co.in/
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 150, 152 and other applicable 

provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013  (the Act), the Companies (Appointment and 

Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 read with Schedule IV of the Act, Regulation 16(1)(b) 

and other applicable regulations of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 

and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (Listing Regulations) (including any 

amendment(s), statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force), the Articles of Association of the Company, the Nomination and Remuneration Policy 

of the Company and based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee, Ms. Ankita Mathpal (DIN:10642403) who was appointed as an Additional Director 

in the category of Independent Director of the Company with effect from June 01, 2024 by the 

Board of Directors based on recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee and 

who holds office upto the date of ensuing Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms  of 

Section 161 of the Act or within three months from her appointment, whichever is earlier in 

terms of Listing Regulations and who has submitted a declaration that she meets the criteria of 

independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing 

Regulations and who is eligible for appointment under the provisions of the Act, the Rules made 

thereunder and the Listing Regulations and whose period of office shall not be liable to retire 

by rotation and in respect of whom the Company has received a notice in writing from a 

Member under Section 160(1) of the Act proposing her candidature for the office of Director 

of the Company, be and is hereby appointed as a Non-Executive Independent Director to hold 

office for a term of five years, effective from June 01, 2024 to May 31, 2029. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to the provisions of sections 149, 197 and other 

applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, Ms. Ankita Mathpal shall be 

entitled to receive the remuneration or fees as permitted to be received in a capacity of Non-

Executive Independent Director under the Act and Listing Regulations, from time to time and 

mutually discussed. 

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is 

hereby severally authorised to sign and execute all such documents and papers as may be 

required for the purpose and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may be considered expedient 

and necessary in this regard.” 

 

4. To make Investment, Give Loans, Guarantees and Provide Securities under Section 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 

 

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution 

as a Special Resolution:  
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“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 

read with the Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014 as amended from 

time to time and other applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (including any 

amendment(s), statutory modification(s) and/or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 

force), if any, the consent of the Members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors 

of the Company (“Board”) (which term shall include any committee constituted by the Board 

or any person(s) authorized by the Board) to (i) Give any Loan to any person or other Body 

corporate; or (ii) Give any Guarantee or provide any Security in connection with a Loan to any 

other Body Corporate or person; and (iii) Acquire by way of Subscription, Purchase or 

otherwise, the Securities of any other Body Corporate, as the Board may its absolute discretion 

deems beneficial in the interest of the Company, subject to maximum aggregate of the Loans 

and Investments so far made in and the amount for which Guarantees or Securities have so far 

been provided to all persons or Body Corporates along with the additional Investments, Loans, 

Guarantees or Securities proposed to be made or given or provided by the Company, from time 

to time, in future, may exceed over and above the limits of higher of 60% of the Paid-up Share 

Capital, Free Reserves and Securities Premium Account of the Company or 100% of Free 

Reserves and Securities Premium Account of the Company, as prescribed under Section 186 of 

the Companies Act, 2013, but shall not exceed a sum of ₹ 75,00,00,000/- (Rupees Seventy Five 

Crore only).  

 

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of the Board of Directors of the Company be and is 

hereby severally authorized to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be necessary, 

expedient and desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.” 

 

 

By order of the Board 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

 

Place: Delhi   

Date: 21/05/2024                                                                                               

 Sd/- 

 (Daulat Ram Agarwal) 

   Managing Director                                                                                                                             

DIN: 00586956 
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NOTES: 

 

1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting is entitled to appoint a Proxy to attend and 

Vote on Poll instead of himself / herself and such Proxy need not be a member of the company. 

Proxies in order to be effective must be received at the Registered Office / Corporate Office of 

the Company not less than forty-eight hours (48) hours before the meeting. The instrument 

appointing the proxy, in order to be effective, must be deposited in original at the Registered 

Office / Corporate Office of the Company duly completed and signed not less than 48 hours 

before the commencement of the meeting. Members / Proxies should fill the attendance slip for 

attending the meeting. 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 105 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), read with the 

applicable rules thereon a person can act as a proxy on behalf of members not exceeding fifty 

(50) and holding in aggregate not more than 10 percent (10%) of the Total Share Capital of the 

company carrying voting rights may appoint a single person as proxy who shall not act as a proxy 

for any other member. 

 

2. During the period, beginning 24 hours, before the time fixed for the commencement of the 

meeting and ending with the conclusion of the meeting, members would be entitled to inspect 

the proxies lodged, at any time during the business hours of the Company, provided not less than 

three (3) days written notice is given to the Company 

 

3. Corporate members / Institutional Investors (i.e. other than individuals, HUF’s, NRI’s etc.) 

intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the meeting in terms of Section 113 

of the Act are requested to send the Company a certified copy of the Board Resolution / Power 

of Attorney / Authority Letter authorizing their representative(s) with attested specimen signature 

of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized for attending and voting on their behalf 

at the meeting. Corporate Members / Institutional investors (i.e. other than individuals, HUF’s, 

NRI’s etc.) can also upload their Board Resolution / Power of Attorney / Authority Letter etc. by 

clicking on “Upload Board Resolution / Authority Letter” displayed under “e-Voting” tab in their 

login. 

 

4. Members / Proxies /Authorised Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slip duly 

filled in for attending the Meeting and shall handover at the entrance for attending the meeting. 

Members who hold shares in dematerialised form are requested to write their client ID and DP 

ID numbers and those who hold shares in physical form are requested to write their Folio Number 

on the attendance slip for attending the Meeting. Members of the Company under the category 

of Corporate Members / Institutional Investors are encouraged to attend and participate in the 

AGM. 
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5. In case of joint holders, the Member whose name appears as the first holder in the order of names 

as per the Register of Members of the Company will be entitled to vote at the AGM. 

 

6. The Notice of AGM [along with Proxy Form, Attendance Slip, Route Map and Annual Report] 

will be sent to those members / beneficial owners whose names will appear in the Register of 

Members / list of Beneficial Owners received from the Depositories as on Cut Off date i.e. Friday, 

June 28, 2024.These documents are being sent electronically to the members whose E-mail IDs 

are registered with the Company / Depository Participant(s) (DP) unless any member has 

requested for a physical copy of the same. For members who have requested physical copy or 

who have not registered their email address, physical copies of the Notice and Annual Report are 

being sent through permitted mode. In case member wish to get a physical copy of the Annual 

Report, member may send their request at info@mchl.co.in and/or nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com 

mentioning their Folio No. / DP ID and Client ID.  

 

7. Members may note that the Notice of the 35th AGM and Annual Report for 2023-24 will also be 

available on Company’s website at www.mchl.co.in, website of the Calcutta Stock Exchange of 

India Limited i.e. www.cse-india.com  and on the website of National Securities Depository 

Limited (‘NSDL’) at www.evoting.nsdl.com.  

 

8. The Register of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel and their shareholding maintained 

under Section 170 of the Act and the Register Contracts or Arrangements in which Directors are 

interested maintained under Section 189 of the Act will be available for inspection by the 

members at the AGM. Members desiring inspection of statutory registers and other relevant 

documents may send their request in writing to the Company at info@mchl.co.in 

 

9. The Explanatory Statement pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Act setting out 

material facts concerning the special business(es) to be transacted under Item Nos. 3 to 4 of this 

Notice, is provided herein. The Board of Directors of the Company at its meeting held on 

Tuesday, May 21, 2024, considered special businesses mentioned under Item Nos. 3 to 4 and 

recommending to the members to transact at the 35th AGM of the Company. 

 

10. A statement giving additional details of the Director seeking appointment /re-appointment at the 

ensuing AGM of this Notice are annexed herewith as required under Regulations 36(3) of the 

Listing Regulations and Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings issued by ‘The Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India’. 

  

11. Members desiring any information about financial statements or any other matter are requested 

to write to the Company at info@mchl.co.in by mentioning their name, DP ID and Client ID 

number /folio number and mobile number at least 10 days in advance of the AGM to facilitate 

mailto:info@
mailto:nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
http://www.mchl.co.in/
http://www.cse-india./
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:info@mchl.co.in
mailto:info@sophiaexport.com
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compliance thereof. Queries that remain unanswered at the AGM will be appropriately responded 

to the members by the Company at the earliest, post conclusion of the AGM. 

 

12. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to intimate the changes in their registered 

address in Block Letters with PIN Code of the Post Office, Email-ID, Bank particulars and 

Permanent Account Number (PAN) to the Company’s Registrar and Share Transfer Agent and 

in case of members holding their shares in electronic form, this information should be given to 

their DP immediately. 

 

13. The Company has a dedicated e-mail address i.e., info@mchl.co.in for members to mail their 

queries or lodge grievances, via email or may send their queries at the Corporate Office address 

of the Company. We will endeavour to reply the queries at the earliest. 

 

14. Niche Technologies Private Limited is the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company. 

All the shares related to communication may be addressed to the following address: 

Niche Technologies Private Limited 

3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 7B, Kolkata – 700017 

Phones: (033) 2280 6616 / 6617 / 6618; E-Mail: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com  

 

15. SEBI has established a common Online Dispute Resolution Portal (‘ODR Portal’) for resolution 

of disputes arising in the Indian Securities Market. Pursuant to this, post exhausting the option to 

resolve their grievance with the RTA / Company directly and through existing SCORES 

platform, the investors can initiate dispute resolution through the ODR Portal 

(https://smartodr.in/login) and the same can also be accessed through the Company’s Website at  

https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php. 

 

16. The Register of Members and the Share Transfer Books of the Company will be closed from 

Tuesday, July 23, 2024 to Monday, July 29, 2024 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of the 

35th AGM.  

 

17. The Company has not recommended any Final Dividend nor declared any Interim Dividend 

during the year. Further, in pursuant to the provisions of Section 124 and 125 of the Act read 

with the Investor Education and Protection Fund Authority (Accounting, Audit, Transfer and 

Refund) Rules, 2016 (IEPF Rules), all the shares on which dividends remain unpaid or unclaimed 

for a period of seven consecutive years or more shall be transferred to the demat account of the 

IEPF Authority as notified by the MCA. The said requirement does not apply to the shares in 

respect of which there is a specific order of Court, Tribunal or Statutory Authority, restraining 

any transfer of the shares. Accordingly, the unclaimed dividend with respective shares and 

dividend in respect of financial year 2016-17 is not due to transfer to the IEPF. 

mailto:info@
mailto:nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php
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18. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has taken a ‘Green Initiative in Corporate Governance’ by 

allowing Companies to send documents to their members in electronic mode. To support this 

green initiative and to receive communications from the Company in electronic mode, Members 

who have not registered their e-mail addresses and are holding shares in physical form are 

requested to contact the RTA of the Company and register their e-mail address. Members holding 

shares in demat form are requested to contact their DPs. Members may please note that notices, 

annual reports, etc. will be available on the Company’s website at www.mchl.co.in. Members 

will be entitled to receive the said documents in physical form free of cost at any time upon 

request. 

 

19. Updation of PAN and other details 

 

Pursuant to SEBI Master Circular dated May 17, 2023 (‘SEBI Master Circular’), it is mandatory 

to furnish PAN, KYC details (i.e. postal address with pin code, e-mail address, mobile number, 

bank account details) and Nomination details by holders of physical securities through Form ISR-

1.  

 

Members holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to go through the 

requirements hosted on the website of the Company at 

https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php and furnish the requisite details.  

 

Members are also requested to intimate changes, if any, pertaining to their name, postal address, 

e-mail address, mobile number, PAN, registration of nomination, power of attorney registration, 

bank mandate details, etc. to their DPs in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the 

RTA at nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com in case the shares are held in physical form, quoting their 

folio number. Changes intimated to the DP will then be automatically reflected in the Company’s 

records.  

 

A communication is being sent by the Company to all the Members holding shares of the 

Company in physical form for furnishing their PAN, KYC and Nomination details. Members 

holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to go through the requirements on 

the website of the Company at https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php to furnish the 

abovementioned details.  

 

Further, relevant FAQs published by SEBI on its website can be viewed at 

https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/jan-2024/1704433843359.pdf.  

 

20. In accordance with Regulation 40 of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended, the Company 

has stopped accepting any fresh transfer requests for securities held in physical form. Members 

http://www./
https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php
mailto:nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php
https://www.sebi.gov.in/sebi_data/faqfiles/jan-2024/1704433843359.pdf
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holding shares of the Company in physical form are requested to kindly get their shares converted 

into demat/electronic form to get inherent benefits of dematerialization. 

 

Further, Members may please note that pursuant to aforesaid SEBI Master Circular, listed 

companies are mandated to issue securities in demat form only, while processing any service 

requests viz. issue of duplicate securities certificate; claim from Unclaimed Suspense Account; 

renewal/exchange of securities certificate; endorsement; sub-division/splitting of securities 

certificate; consolidation of securities certificates/folios; transmission and transposition. 

Accordingly, Members are requested to make service requests by submitting a duly filled and 

signed Form ISR-4 or Form ISR-5 (for transmission), the formats of which are available on the 

website of the Company at https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php. It may be noted that any 

service request or complaint can be processed only after the folio is KYC compliant. 

 

21. The format of the Register of Members prescribed by the MCA under the Act requires the 

Company/Registrar to record additional details of Members, including their PAN details, e-mail 

address, bank details for payment of dividend, etc. This request should be submitted in Form 

ISR-1. Members holding shares in physical form are requested to submit the filled-in form to the 

Company or to the Registrar in original as per instructions mentioned in the form. Members 

holding shares in electronic form are requested to submit the details to their respective DPs only 

and not to the Company or RTA. 

 

22. Nomination Facility: As per the provisions of Section 72 of the Act, the facility for making a 

nomination is available for the members in respect of shares held by them. Members who have 

not yet registered their nominations are requested to register the same by submitting Form No. 

SH-13. If a member desires to cancel the earlier nomination and record a fresh nomination, he 

may submit the same in Form SH-14. Members who are either not desiring to register nomination 

or would want to opt-out, are requested to fill and submit Form No. ISR-3. The said forms can 

be downloaded from the RTA’s website. Members are requested to submit the said form(s) to 

their DP in case the shares are held in electronic form and to the RTA in case the shares are held 

in physical form quoting their folio no.  

 

23. Members holding shares in physical form, in identical order of names, in more than one folio are 

requested to send to the Company or RTA, the details of such folios together with the share 

certificates and self-attested copies of the PAN card of the holders for consolidating their 

holdings in one folio. A consolidated Share Certificate will be issued to such Members after 

making requisite changes. The consolidation will be processed in demat form. 

 

24. To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to exercise due diligence and notify the 

Company of any change in address or demise of any Member as soon as possible. Members are 

https://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php


12 

 

also advised to not leave their Demat account(s) dormant for long. Periodic statement of holdings 

should be obtained from the concerned DP and holdings should be verified from time to time. 

 

GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS AND GUIDELINES FOR ACCESSING AND 

PARTICIPATING IN THE 35TH AGM 

 

 Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Act read with Rule 20 of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended), Secretarial Standards on General 

Meetings (SS-2) issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’ (ICSI) and Regulation 

44 of Listing Regulations, the Company is providing Remote e-Voting facility to its Members in 

respect of the business to be transacted at the 35th AGM and facility for those Members 

participating in the 35th AGM to cast vote through ballot paper / poll paper during the 35th AGM. 

For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 

Limited (NSDL), as the authorized e-voting agency for facilitating voting through electronic 

means. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-voting as well as voting through 

ballot papers / poll paper on the date of the AGM will be provided. 

 

 A person who has acquired the shares and has become a member of the Company and whose 

names are recorded in the Register of Members or in the Register of Beneficial Owners 

maintained by the Depositories after the dispatch of the Notice of the AGM and prior to the Cut-

off date i.e., Monday, July 22, 2024 shall be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-voting 

before AGM as well as voting through ballot papers / poll papers on the date of the AGM at the 

venue of the meeting. Any recipient of the Notice who has no voting rights as on the Cut-off date 

shall treat this Notice for informative purpose only. 

 

 The remote e-voting period begins on Friday, July 26, 2024 at 9:00 A.M. and ends on Sunday, 

July 28, 2024 at 5:00 P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting 

thereafter. The Members whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners 

as on the record date (cut-off date) i.e., Monday, July 22, 2024 may cast their vote electronically. 

 

 The voting rights of the members shall be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share 

capital of the Company as on the Cut-off date i.e., Monday, July 22, 2024. 

 

 The members can opt for only one mode of voting i.e., remote e-voting or physical voting through 

poll paper at the meeting. In case of voting by both the modes, vote cast through remote e-voting, 

will be considered final and voting through physical voting at the meeting will not be considered. 

 

 The facility for voting through Poll would be made available at the AGM and the members 

attending the meeting who have not cast their votes by remote e-voting shall be able to exercise 

their right at the meeting through Poll Paper. The members who have already cast their vote by 
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remote e-voting prior to the meeting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast 

their vote again. 

 

 Once the vote on a resolution is cast by the member, he/she shall not be allowed to change it 

subsequently or cast the vote again. 

 

 The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed CS Vipin Shukla, Practicing Company 

Secretary (Membership No. F-6798 & Certificate of Practice No. 18011), Proprietor of M/s. 

Vipin Shukla & Company, Company Secretaries, Delhi, as Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote 

e-Voting process and voting through ballot / poll papers during the meeting in a fair and 

transparent manner. 

 

 The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of voting at the 35th AGM, unblock the votes cast 

through remote e-Voting and shall make a consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes 

casted in favor or against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been carried or 

not and such report shall then be sent to the Chairman of the meeting or a person authorized by 

him within the time prescribed under the Listing Regulations and / or the Act, who shall then 

countersign and declare the result of the voting forthwith. 

 

 The Chairman shall at the end of discussion on the resolutions placed at the AGM on which 

voting is to be held allow voting with the assistance of the Scrutinizer by use of Polling Paper for 

all those members / proxies who are present at the AGM but have not cast their votes by availing 

the remote e-Voting facility. 

 

 The results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be placed on the website of the 

Company www.mchl.co.in and at the website of NSDL at www.evoting.nsdl.com immediately 

after the declaration of results by the Chairman of the meeting or a person authorized by him. 

The results shall also be immediately forwarded to the Calcutta Stock Exchange. The results shall 

be displayed at the Registered Office at 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata-7000069, 

India and at the Corporate Office at 81, Functional Industrial Estate, Patparganj, Delhi – 110092, 

India.   

 

 

By order of the Board 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

 

Place: Delhi   

Date: 21/05/2024                                                                                               

 Sd/- 

 (Daulat Ram Agarwal) 

   Managing Director                                                                                                                             

DIN: 00586956 

http://www.mchl.co.in/
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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OTHER INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS 

UNDER: 

 

In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020, 

Login method for Remote e-Voting for Individual Members (You) holding securities in Demat 

mode (NSDL / CDSL) are given below: 

 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode 

 

Pursuant to above said SEBI Circular on e-Voting facility provided by Company, Individual 

members holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through their demat account 

maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants (DP). Members are advised to 

update their mobile number and email address in their demat accounts in order to access e-

Voting facility.  

 

Login method for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

 

Type of Members  Login Method 

Individual Members 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

NSDL 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL 

Viz. https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer 

or on a mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the 

“Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available 

under ‘IDeAS’ section, this will prompt you to enter your 

existing User ID and Password. After successful 

authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting services under 

Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” under e-

Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., 

NSDL and you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of 

NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period. 

  

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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2. If you are not registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to 

register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select 

“Register Online for IDeAS Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp  

 

3. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by 

typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 

either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 

page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” 

which is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A 

new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID 

(i.e., your sixteen-digit demat account number hold with 

NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as shown on 

the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-

Voting page. Click on company name or e-Voting service 

provider i.e., NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting 

website of NSDL for casting your vote during the remote e-

Voting period.  

 

4. You can also download NSDL Mobile App “NSDL Speede” 

facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below for 

seamless voting experience. 

 

 

Individual Members 

holding securities in 

demat mode with 

CDSL 

1. Users who have opted for CDSL Easi / Easiest facility, can 

login through their existing user id and password. Option will 

be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further 

authentication. The users to login Easi /Easiest are requested 

to visit CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on login 

icon & New System Myeasi Tab and then user your existing 

my easi username & password. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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2. After successful login the Easi / Easiest user will be able to see 

the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the e-voting 

is in progress as per the information provided by company. On 

clicking the e-voting option, the user will be able to see e-

Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. Additionally, there is 

also links provided to access the system of all e-Voting Service 

Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service 

providers’ website directly. 

 

3. If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register 

is available at CDSL website www.cdslindia.com and click on 

login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration 

option. 

 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a e-

Voting link available on www.cdslindia.com home page. The 

system will authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered 

Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After 

successful authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting 

option where the e-voting is in progress and also able to 

directly access the system of all e-Voting Service Providers. 

Individual Members 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their 

Depository 

Participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat 

account through your Depository Participant registered with 

NSDL/CDSL for e-Voting facility. Upon logging in, you will be 

able to see e-Voting option. Click on e-Voting option, you will be 

redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site after successful 

authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click on 

company name or e-Voting service provider i.e., NSDL and you 

will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your 

vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use 

Forget User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

http://www.cdslindia.com/
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Helpdesk for Individual Members holding securities in demat mode for any technical 

issues related to login through Depository i.e., NSDL and CDSL 

 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Members holding 

securities in demat mode with 

NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  

evoting@nsdl.com or call at 022 - 4886 7000  

Individual Members holding 

securities in demat mode with 

CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free 

no. 1800 22 55 33 

 

B) Login Method for e-Voting for members other than Individual Members holding 

securities in demat mode and members holding securities in physical mode. 

 

How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 

 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following 

URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

 

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which 

is available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP 

and a Verification Code as shown on the screen. 

Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e., IDEAS, you can log-in at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 

eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed 

to Step 2 i.e., Cast your vote electronically. 

 

4. Your User ID details are given below: 

 

Manner of holding shares i.e., Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit 

Client ID 

For example, if your DP ID is IN300*** 

and Client ID is 12****** then your user 

ID is IN300***12******. 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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b) For Members who hold shares in 

demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example, if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio 

Number registered with the company 

For example, if folio number is 001*** 

and EVEN is 101456 then user ID is 

101456001*** 
 

 

5. Password details for Members other than Individual Members are given below:  

 

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing 

password to login and cast your vote. 

 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to 

retrieve the ‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you 

retrieve your ‘initial password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the 

system will force you to change your password. 

 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 

(i) If your email ID is registered in your demat account or with the 

company, your ‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email 

ID. Trace the email sent to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open 

the email and open the attachment i.e., a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The 

password to open the .pdf file is your 8-digit client ID for NSDL 

account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio number for 

shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ and 

your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below 

in process for those members whose email ids are not registered.  

 

6. If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have 

forgotten your password: 

 

a)  Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your 

demat account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

 

b)  Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) 

option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send 

a request at evoting@nsdl.com mentioning your demat account number/folio 

number, your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the 

votes on the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting 

on the check box. 

 

8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 

 

9. After you click on the “Login” button, home page of e-Voting will open. 

 

Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system 

 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-

Voting period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e., assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on 

the confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

General Guidelines for members  

 

1. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

2. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for members 

and e-voting user manual for members available at the download section of 

www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on : 022 - 4886 7000 or send a request to Ms. Pallavi Mhatre, 

Assistant Manager at evoting@nsdl.com 

Process for those members whose email ids are not registered with the depositories for 

procuring user id and password and registration of e-mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 

set out in this notice: 

 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of member, 

scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned copy 

of PAN card), and AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 

info@mchl.co.in and evoting@nsdl.com. 

 

2. In case shares are held in demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + 

CLID or 16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account 

statement, PAN (self-attested scanned copy of PAN card), and AADHAR (self-attested 

scanned copy of Aadhar Card) to info@mchl.co.in and evoting@nsdl.com. If you are an 

Individual Members holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the 

login method explained at step 1 (A) i.e., Login method for e-Voting for Individual 

Members holding securities in demat mode. 

 

3. Alternatively, members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.com for procuring user id 

and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

 

 

 

By order of the Board 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

 

Place: Delhi   

Date: 21/05/2024                                                                                               

 Sd/- 

 (Daulat Ram Agarwal) 

   Managing Director                                                                                                                             

DIN: 00586956 

 

 

 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:info@mchl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:info@mchl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.com
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Explanatory Statement  

 

For Item No. 3  

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and other applicable provisions) 

 

Based on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of 

Directors of the Company (Board) at its meeting held on May 21, 2024 has appointed Ms. Ankita 

Mathpal (DIN:10642403) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Independent) of the 

Company for a first term of five (5) years effective from June 01, 2024, not liable to retire by 

rotation, subject to approval of the Shareholders of the Company.  

 

The Company has received from Ms. Ankita Mathpal consents in writing to act as Directors in 

Form DIR-2 in pursuant to Rule 8 of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) 

Rules, 2014, intimation in Form DIR-8 in terms of Companies (Appointment & Qualification of 

Directors) Rules, 2014, to the effect that she is not disqualified under Section 164(2) of the Act 

and a declaration to the effect that she meets the criteria of independence as provided in Section 

149(6) of the Act and under SEBI Listing Regulations. She does not hold any equity shares of the 

Company.  

 

In terms of provisions contained under Section 160 of the Act and the rules made thereunder, a 

person who is not a retiring director in terms of Section 152 of the Act shall, subject to the 

provisions of this Act, be eligible for appointment to the Office of Director at the next General 

Meeting. The Company has also received a Notice under Section 160 of the Act from a member 

proposing candidature of Ms. Ankita Mathpal for the office of Directors of the Company.  

 

Further, in terms of the amended Regulation 17(1C) of the Listing Regulations, Company shall 

ensure that the approval of shareholders for appointment of a person on the Board of Directors has 

to take either at the next general meeting or within a time period of three months from the date of 

appointment, whichever is earlier. Accordingly, approval of the shareholders is sought to comply 

with the said Regulations.  

 

In the opinion of the Board, Ms. Ankita Mathpal is a person of integrity, possesses the relevant 

expertise / experience and balance of skills, and fulfils the conditions specified in the Act and the 

Listing Regulations for appointment as a Non-Executive Independent Director and she is 

independent of the management. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of Listing Regulations, Ms. Mathpal 

has confirmed that she is not aware of any circumstance or situation that exists or may be 

reasonably anticipated that could impair or impact her ability to discharge her duties with an 

objective independent judgment and without any external influence. 
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The disclosures including brief resume and other details prescribed under Regulation 36(3) of the 

Listing Regulations read with the provisions of the Secretarial Standard-2 on General Meetings 

issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’ are provided in Annexure A to this 

Notice.  

 

Except Ms. Mathpal being appointee, none of the Director(s) or Key Managerial Personnel(s) of 

the Company or their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, 

in the proposed resolution.  

 

The Board recommends the appointment of Ms. Ankita Mathpal (DIN:10642403), effective from 

June 01, 2024 to May 31, 2029 for approval of the members through Special Resolution set out at 

Item No. 3 of the Notice. 

 

For Item No. 4 

(Pursuant to Section 102 of the Act and other applicable provisions) 

 

In order to make optimum use of funds available with the Company and also to achieve long term 

strategic and business objectives, the Board of Directors of the Company proposes to make use of 

the same by making investment in other bodies corporate or granting loans, giving guarantee or 

providing security to other persons or other body corporate as and when required. 

 

Members may note that pursuant to Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company can 

give loan or give any guarantee or provide security in connection with a loan to any other body 

corporate or person and acquire securities of any other body corporate, in excess of 60% of its paid 

up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100% of its free reserves and 

securities premium account, whichever is more, with approval of Members by special resolution 

passed at the general meeting.  

 

In view of the aforesaid, it is proposed to take approval under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013, by way of special resolution, up to a limit of ₹75,00,00,000 /- (Rupees Seventy-Five Crores 

only) as proposed in the Notice.  

 

The above proposal is in the interest of the Company and the Board recommends the Resolution 

as set out at item No.4 for approval by the members of the Company.  

 

None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel or their relatives are in any way concerned 

with or interested, financially or otherwise in the resolution at item no. 4 of the accompanying 

notice. The Board recommends the resolution at item no. 4 to be passed as Special Resolution. 
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Additional details of director seeking appointment and / or re-appointment at the 35th AGM 

in terms of Regulation 36(3) of Listing Regulations and SS-2 

 

Resolution No. 2  3 

Name of Director Mr. Lalit Agarwal Ms. Ankita Mathpal 

Director 

Identification 

Number (DIN) 

00109920 10642403 

Designation Non - Executive and Promoter 

Director 

Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

Date of First 

Appointment 

November 17, 2005 June 01, 2024 

Date of Birth October 07, 1960 May 15, 1999 

Nationality Indian Indian 

Qualification Mr. Agarwal is graduate in 

Commerce from The 

Bhawanipur Education Society 

College, University of West 

Bengal. 

Ms. Mathpal holds degree in 

Bachelors in Commerce from 

University of Delhi.   

Terms & 

conditions of 

appointment / 

reappointment 

Pursuant to the provisions of 

Section 152 of the Act and other 

applicable provisions and as per 

the Company’s Articles of 

Association. 

As an Independent Director of the 

Company to hold office for a period 

starting from June 01, 2024 to May 

31, 2029 and shall not be liable to 

retire by rotation. 

Brief Profile 

including 

experience and 

expertise in 

specific functional 

area 

Mr. Agarwal is very dynamic & 

forward looking at any stage of 

business. He has contributed a 

large to the Company and its 

group Companies where he is 

associated. He has got good 

presence in the field of 

PVC/HDPE Pipe, Water Tanks 

and fittings etc. He holds 

commanding position in the 

business and has performed 

drastically during his business 

exposure of more than three 

decades. His endeavor, 

experience, and vast knowledge 

Ms. Mathpal is a working 

Professional having a core 

experience in handling Secretarial 

Compliances and various 

registrations required by the 

Company. She holds brief 

knowledge of GST, Income Tax, 

IRDAI and RERA. She is having 

experience in working of due 

diligence. 
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will definitely make the project a 

grand success and upto the mark. 

Number of Equity 

Shares held in the 

Company 

350000 Equity Shares Nil 

Number of Board 

Meetings attended 

during the F.Y 

2023-24 

Six (6) Not eligible to attend the Board 

Meetings during the FY 2023-2024 

Directorship held 

in other 

Companies 

Mr. Agarwal holds directorship 

in the following Companies other 

than Marda Commercial & 

Holdings Ltd.: Sophia Exports 

Limited, Advance Steel Tubes 

Limited, Tirupati Structurals 

Limited, TSL Piping Solutions 

Private Limited, Advance Ispat 

(India) Limited, Advance 

Enterprises Private Limited, Tak 

Buildtech Private Limited and 

Techzzler International Private 

Limited. 

Nil as on reporting date. 

Chairman of 

Committees 

- - 

Member of 

Committees 

He is member of Audit 

Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee. 

She is a member of Audit 

Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and 

Stakeholders Relationship 

Committee w.e.f. June 01, 2024. 

Relationship with 

other Directors, 

Managers, and 

other Key 

Managerial 

Personnel 

Not related to any of the 

Director(s), Managers, and Key 

Managerial Personnel of the 

Company. 

Not related to any of the Director(s), 

Managers, and Key Managerial 

Personnel of the Company. 

Details of 

remuneration last 

drawn 

Not Applicable Not Applicable 
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Details of 

remuneration 

sought to be paid 

Remuneration to be paid as per 

approval received. 

Remuneration to be paid as per 

approval received. 

Affirmation w.r.t. 

SEBI Letter 

He affirms that he is not debarred 

from holding the office by virtue 

of any SEBI Order or any other 

authority. 

She affirms that she is not debarred 

from holding the office by virtue of 

any SEBI Order or any other 

authority. 

Affirmation 

pursuant to 

provisions of 

Section 164 of the 

Companies Act, 

2013 

He confirms that he is not 

disqualified from holding the 

office of Director. 

She confirms that she is not 

disqualified from holding the office 

of Director. 

  

 

By order of the Board 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

 

Place: Delhi   

Date: 21/05/2024                                                                                               

 Sd/- 

 (Daulat Ram Agarwal) 

   Managing Director                                                                                                                             

DIN: 00586956 
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Form No. MGT-11 

Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies 

(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

 

Name of the Member(s)                                   

Registered Address                                             

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 

 

I / We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited hereby appoints 

 

Name :………………………………………………… E-mail Id:………………………………….. 

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Signature:……………………………………………………………………………………...., or failing him/her 

 

Name :………………………………………………… E-mail Id:………………………………….. 

Address:…………………………………………………………………………………………………………… 

Signature:……………………………………………………………………………………...., or failing him/her 

 

 

Name :………………………………………………… E-mail Id:………………………………..… 

Address:………………………………………………………………………………………………………….… 

Signature:…………………………………………………………………………………………………………... 

 

 

as my / our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the 35th Annual General Meeting of 

the Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited to be held on the Monday, 29th day of July, 2024 at 11:00 A.M. at registered 

office situated at 11, Crooked Lane, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata-7000069, India and at any adjournment thereof in respect 

of such resolutions as are indicated below: 

 

Ordinary Business: 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 

March 31, 2024 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Lalit Agarwal (DIN: 00109920) who retires by rotation in terms of Section 

152(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and being eligible, seeks re-appointment. 

Special Business: 

3. Appointment of Ms. Ankita Mathpal, (DIN: 10642403) as a Non-Executive Independent Director 

4. To make Investment, Give Loans, Guarantees and Provide Securities under Section 186 of the Companies Act, 

2013 

 

Signature of Member(s) / Shareholder(s): 

Signature of Proxy holder(s): 

 

Note: This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the registered office of the Company 

not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamp 
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Attendance Slip for attending 35th Annual General Meeting of Marda Commercial & 

Holdings Limited 

 

ATTENDANCE SLIP – MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LIMITED 

 

35th Annual General Meeting, Monday, July 29, 2024, 11:00 A.M. 

 

Regd. Folio No._______/DP ID___________Client ID/Ben. A/C____________No. of shares 

held______ 

I certify that I am a registered member/proxy for the registered member of the Company and hereby 

record my presence at the 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company on Monday, July 29, 

2024, 11:00 A.M. at 11, Crooked Lane, Room No. 7, PS. Hare Street, Kolkata – 700069. 

 

Member’s/Proxy’s name in Block Letters…………………..                                                                                 

Member’s/Proxy’s Signature……………………………….. 

Note: Please fill this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall. 

 

ROUTE MAP TO 35TH AGM VENUE OF MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS 

LIMITED 
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BOARDS’ REPORT 

 

To, 

The Members of Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited, 

 

Your directors have pleasure in presenting their 35th Annual Report on the business and operations 

of Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited (the “Company”) together with the Audited Statement 

of Accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

 

Financial Highlights  

 

During the year under review, financial highlights of your company are as under: 

                                                                                                                                    (in Lacs) 

Financial Result Year Ended 

31.03.2024 

Year Ended 

31.03.2023 

Total Revenue 407.77 198.52 

Total expenses 160.16 191.36 

Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 247.61 7.16 

Less: Tax Expenses (13.51) 22.13 

Profit /(Loss) After Tax 261.13 (14.97) 

Transfers to Statutory Reserve 134.46 30.68 

Balance carried to Balance Sheet 4483.32 3811.02 

   

Operating & Financial Performance 

 

During the period under review, Gross revenues increased to Rs. 257.05 Lakhs against Rs. 198.15 

Lakhs in the previous year. Profit before taxation is Rs. 247.61 Lakhs against Rs. 7.16 Lakhs in 

the previous year. Profit after tax increased to Rs. 261.13 Lakhs as comparison to loss of Rs. 14.97 

Lakhs. 

 

The Company’s performance was improved in the FY 2023-24 as the Company remains motivated 

and committed to consistently create value for our stakeholders while maintaining our strong 

leadership position. A detailed analysis of the overall performance is given in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report, forming part of this Report. 

 

The Financial Statements of the Company for the FY 2023-24 are prepared in compliance with the 

applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”), 

Accounting Standards and Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) under SEBI (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Listing Regulations”). The Financial Statement has been prepared on the basis of the Audited 
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Financial Statement of the Company approved by the Board of Directors in their meeting held on 

May 21, 2024. The Audited Financial Statement along with Auditors Report for the FY 2023-24 

into consideration have been annexed to the Annual Report and also made available on the website 

of the Company which can be accessed at https://www.mchl.co.in/.  

 

Review of Business and Operations and state of your Company’s affairs 

 

Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited, a Non- Banking Financial Company (NBFC), registered 

under the Companies Act, 1956. It is a listed NBFC Company, engaged in the business of 

providing loans and advances, investment in shares. The Company was incorporated as a “Private 

Limited” Company on January 29, 1990 vide certificate of incorporation issued by the Registrar 

of Companies, Kolkata. On October 31, 1994, the Registrar of Companies, Kolkata issued a fresh 

certificate of Incorporation for the change in the name of the company from “Marda Commercial 

& Holdings Private Limited” to “Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited” pursuant to the 

conversion of the Private Limited Company to a Public Limited Company. Keeping in view the 

growth story of NBFC sector, the Company had applied to Reserve Bank of India for obtaining 

certificate of registration for carrying on NBFC business and it was registered with Reserve Bank 

of India as NBFC vide registration certificate no. B.05.02261 dated May 16, 1998. 

 

Your Company seeks to develop and justify the reason of our existence through value creation in 

management and processes. The Company’s approach in managing the Company stands on the 

core values of – Respect, Trust, Ownership and Integrated Teamwork. The company is working to 

strengthen its moves to achieve goals with the principles of being decisive, innovative, inspiring, 

empowering, dynamic and process driven to take its integrated approach forward. This is a fitting 

approach for an organization such as ours, where we interact and have intense relationships with 

a broad and diverse set of stakeholders. 

 

Change in the nature of business, if any 

 

There is no change in the nature of the business of the Company.  

 

Dividend 

 

In order to conserve the resources of the Company for the good future prospects and growth, the 

Board of Directors taking this view and have decided not to distribute any dividend out of the 

reserves of the Company and therefore the Board of Directors of the Company has not 

recommended any dividend to the Shareholders. 

 

 

 

https://www.mchl.co.in/
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Transfer to Reserves 

 

Your directors propose to transfer Rs. 134.46 Lakhs to the Statutory Reserves Funds in terms of 

Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.  

 

Significant or Material Orders 

 

There has been no significant and/or material order(s) passed by any Regulators or Courts or 

Tribunals impacting the going concern status of the Company and its future operations. 

 

Statutory & Legal Matters 

 

There has been no significant and/or material order(s) passed by any Regulators/Courts/Tribunals 

impacting the going concern status and the Company’s operations in future except that the 

Company was undergoing the Forensic Audit ordered by SEBI for the period April 01, 2014 to 

June 30, 2017 and conducted by the Calcutta Stock Exchange and taken up and concluded by M/s. 

C. Ghosh & Company, Forensic Auditors. Further, the Company is in correspondence with the 

concerned Stock Exchange to take necessary action to get the name removed from the list of 

suspected shell company based on the Forensic Audit Report received. 

 

Financial Liquidity 

 

Cash and cash equivalent as on March 31, 2024 was Rs. 118.71 Lakhs (previous year was Rs. 

125.56 Lakhs). The Company’s working capital management is based on a well-organized process 

of continuous monitoring and controls. 

 

Holding / Subsidiary / Joint Ventures / Associates 

 

During the period under review as on March 31, 2024, your Company does not have any Holding 

Company, Subsidiary Company, Associate Company or Joint Venture. In accordance with Section 

129(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company was not required to prepare a consolidated 

financial statement as a part of the Annual Report.  

 

Share Capital 

 

As at March 31, 2024, the Authorised Equity Share Capital of the Company stands at  

₹10,10,00,000 (1,01,00,000 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each) and the Paid-up Equity Share Capital of 

the Company is ₹ 10,00,06,000/- (1,00,00,600 Equity Shares of ₹ 10/- each).  
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There is no change in the Share Capital of the Company during the period under review. The 

Company has neither issued shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise nor 

issued shares to the Employees or Directors of the Company. 

 

Your Company does not have any scheme of provision of money for the purchase of its own shares 

by employees or by trustees for the benefit of employees. 

 

Deposits 

 

The Company being a Non deposit taking NBFC has not accepted any public deposits and as such, 

no amount on account of principal or interest on public deposits was outstanding as on the date of 

the balance sheet.  

 

The Company has not accepted deposits from the public falling within the ambit of Section 73 of 

the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules framed thereunder. 

 

Risk Management 

 

Although the Company has long been following the principle of risk minimization as the norm. In 

every industry, it has now become a compulsion. The Board members were informed about risk 

assessment and after which the Board formally adopted and implemented the necessary steps for 

monitoring the risk management plan for the company. The Company’s approach in addressing 

business risks is comprehensive and includes periodic review of such risks and a framework for 

mitigating controls and reporting mechanism of such risks. The risk management framework is 

reviewed periodically by the Board and the Audit Committee. The Company’s management 

monitors and reports on the principal risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve 

its strategic objectives. 

 

Environment, Health and Safety 

 

Environment, Health and Safety are among the core values of your Company. Employees are 

encouraged to report all incidents so that preventive actions can be taken to avoid any mishap. 

Environment sustainability is paramount to any industry and your Company is conscious of its 

responsibility towards the impact of its operations on the environment. 

 

Your Company believes that healthy and hygienic work environment not only benefits the 

workforce but it also increases the productivity and works as a retention tool. 
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Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

 

Directors:  

 

The Board consists of optimum combination of Executive and Non-Executive Directors including 

Independent Directors who have wide and varied experience in different disciplines of corporate 

functioning. Detailed composition about the Board is disclosed in Corporate Governance Report, 

annexed herewith as Annexure II. All the Directors have submitted relevant declarations, 

disclosures and other information as required under the Act and Listing Regulations. 

 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal (DIN: 00109920), Director of the Company, retires by rotation at this 35th  

Annual General Meeting pursuant to the provisions of Section 152 of the Act read with the 

Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors), Rules 2014 and the Articles of 

Association of your Company and being eligible, has offered himself for re-appointment as the 

Director. 

 

During the year under review, there is no change in the directorships of the Company. However; 

on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board has proposed the 

appointment of Ms. Ankita Mathpal (DIN:10642403) as an Additional Director in the category of 

Non-Executive Independent Director effective from June 01, 2024 to hold office till the conclusion 

of the ensuing AGM, for the approval of Members of the Company in the 35th AGM i.e. to hold 

office for a term upto May 31, 2029. Moreover, Ms. Ankita Mathpal has affirmed that she is not 

debarred from holding the office of Independent Director by virtue of any SEBI order or any other 

such Authority. Brief resume and other details of the Director(s) being appointed/re-appointed at 

the ensuing AGM as stipulated under Secretarial Standard-2 issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of India and Regulation 36 of the Listing Regulations is separately disclosed in the 

Notice of the ensuing AGM as annexed. 

 

During the year under review, the Non-Executive Directors & Independent Directors had no 

pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company, other than sitting fees, if any, and re-

imbursement of expenses incurred by them subject to the Board’s approval for the purpose of 

attending meetings of the Board/Committees of the Company. 

 

Key Managerial Personnel’s: 

 

The Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) of the Company as on March 31, 2024 in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 2(51) and Section 203 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing 

Director; Ms. Nimisha Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer; and; Ms. Puja Mantri, Company 

Secretary of the Company. 
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During the year, Mr. Aashish Agarwal, earlier Chief Financial Officer has tendered his resignation 

from the closing of business hours on July 31, 2023 and in furtherance to the resignation, the Board 

has approved the appointment of Ms. Nimisha Agarwal as a Chief Financial Officer & Key 

Managerial Personnel of the Company, effective from August 01, 2023. 

 

Declaration by Independent Director(s) 

 

The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are as per Schedule IV of the 

Act. The Company has received declarations from all the Independent Directors of the Company 

confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed under Section 149(6) of 

the Act read with Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and Qualifications of Directors) Rules, 

2014 and as per the applicable provisions of Listing Regulations and there has been no change in 

the circumstances or situation which exist or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 

impact the ability of Independent Directors to discharge their duties with an objective independent 

judgment and without any external influence. The above declarations were placed before the Board 

and in the opinion of the Board all the Independent Directors fulfils the conditions specified under 

the Act and the Listing Regulations and are Independent to the Management. 

 

Annual Evaluation by the Board of its own performance, its Committees and Individual 

Directors  

 

Pursuant to the applicable provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations and in terms of Policy on 

Evaluation of Performance of Directors and the Board, the Board has carried out an evaluation of 

its own performance, the Directors individually as well as the evaluation of the working of its 

Audit Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholder Relationship 

Committee of Board as mandated under the Act and Listing Regulations. In a separate meeting of 

Independent Directors, the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole 

and the Chairperson of the Company was evaluated taking into account the views of all the 

Directors. The criteria and manner in which the evaluation has been carried out has been explained 

in the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement  

 

In compliance of Section 134(3)(c) read with section 134(5) of the Act, your Directors, based on 

representation received from management, confirms that:  

 

 in the preparation of annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed 

along with proper explanation relating to material departures; 
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 the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of 

the state of affairs of the Company as on March 31, 2024 and of the profit and loss of the 

Company for the year ended March 31, 2024; 

 the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the 

Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

 the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

 the Directors have laid down adequate internal financial controls to be followed by the 

Company and that such internal financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively.  

Based on the framework of internal financial controls including the Control checks for 

financial reporting and compliance systems established and maintained by the Company, work 

performed by the internal, statutory and secretarial auditors and the reviews performed by the 

management and the relevant Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Board 

is of the opinion that the Company’s internal financial controls were adequate and effective 

during the Financial Year 2023-24; and 

 the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.  

 

Meetings of the Board and its Committees 

 

Meetings of Board and its Committees are held as per statutory requirements and as per business 

needs. A calendar of meetings is circulated in advance to the Directors to enable them to plan their 

schedule for effective participation in the meetings. During the year, the Board met six (6) times. 

The maximum intervening gap between the meetings was within the period prescribed under the 

provisions of Section 173 of the Act, Secretarial Standards – 1 (SS-1) issued by The Institute of 

Company Secretaries of India and Listing Regulations. For further details of Board/Committee 

Meetings including composition and attendance, please refer to the Corporate Governance Report, 

forms part of this Report. 

 

As required under the Act, and the Listing Regulations, the Company has constituted these 

statutory committees of the board: The Audit Committee, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee.  

 

A detailed note on the composition of the Board and its committees is provided in the Corporate 

Governance Report. 
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Management Discussion and Analysis Report 

 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report as required under Regulation 34 read with 

Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 ("SEBI Listing Regulations, 2015") is annexed herewith as 

Annexure I. Certain Statements in the said report may be forward-looking. Many factors may 

affect the actual results, which could be different from what the Directors envisage in terms of the 

future performance and outlook. 

 

Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

 

The Board has on the recommendation of Nomination and Remuneration Committee framed a 

policy for selection and appointment of Directors, Senior Management, other employees and their 

remuneration in pursuant to the provisions of Section 178 of the Act and Regulation 19 read with 

Schedule II, Part D of the Listing Regulations. The Company’s policy is available on the website 

of the company at https://www.mchl.co.in.  

 

Particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with the Related Parties 

 

All Related Party Transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s length 

basis and in the ordinary course of business. There are no material significant related party transactions 

made by the Company during the year that would have required shareholder approval under Regulation 23 

of Listing Regulations. All related party transactions are reported to the Audit Committee. Prior approval 

of the Audit Committee is obtained on a yearly basis for the transactions which are planned and/ or repetitive 

in nature and omnibus approvals are taken within limits laid down for unforeseen transactions. The 

disclosure under Section 134(3)(h) of the Act read with Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

is not applicable. The Policy on Related Party transactions as approved by the Board has been uploaded on 

the Company’s Website and may be accessed at the link: https://www.mchl.co.in/party_transaction.php The 

details of the transactions with related parties during 2023-2024 are provided in the accompanying financial 

statements. 

 

None of the Directors had any pecuniary relationship or transactions with the Company during the 

year under review. Further, the transactions with related parties have been shown in Note No. 31 

to the Notes to the Accounts of the Company. 

 

Whistleblower Mechanism 

 

Company is committed to adhere to the highest standards of ethical, moral and legal conduct of 

business operations and in order to maintain these standards, the Company encourages its 

employees who have genuine concerns about suspected misconduct to come forward and express 

these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair treatment. The Company has a strong and 

https://www.mchl.co.in/
https://www.mchl.co.in/party_transaction.php


36 

 

effective Whistleblower Policy which aims to deter and detect actual or suspected misconduct.  

 

This mechanism also provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of employees who 

avail of the mechanism. Any employee may report such incident to the Chairman of the Audit 

Committee. The Audit Committee is empowered to monitor the functioning of the mechanism. It 

reviews the status of complaints received under this policy. The Committee has, in its Report, 

affirmed that no personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee. The details of whistle 

blower policy are posted on the website of the Company and can be accessed at www.mchl.co.in. 

  

Corporate Social Responsibility 

 

The Net worth of the Company was below Rs. 500 Crore, the Turnover of the company was below 

Rs. 1000 Crore and the Net Profit of the Company was below Rs. 5 Crore in any of the preceding 

three financial years, hence, the provisions of Section 135(1) of the Act read with CSR Rules, 2014 

issued in this behalf are not attracted on the Company. 

 

Listing 

 

The shares of the Company are listed on The Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. The Company's 

shares are compulsorily traded in the dematerialized form. The ISIN allotted is INE912C01014. 

 

Statutory Auditor and its report 

 

In pursuant to provisions of the Act, M/s. Multi Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration Number: 509955C) were appointed as Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 33rd 

Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2022 for a period of five consecutive years i.e. till 

the conclusion of 38th AGM. M/s. Multi Associates have audited the Standalone Financial 

Statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024. The Statutory Auditor’s 

report provided by M/s. Multi Associates does not contain any qualifications, reservations, adverse 

remarks or disclaimers which would be required to be dealt within the Boards’ Report.  

 

The total fees paid by the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 to M/s. Multi Associates, 

Chartered Accountants (FRN:509955C), Statutory Auditors aggregate ₹ 1.06 Lakhs. The Statutory 

Auditors does not have any network firm/ network entity.  

 

Secretarial Auditor and its report 

 

M/s. Vipin Shukla & Company, Company Secretaries in Whole-time Practice was appointed to 

conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the Financial Year 2023-2024, as required under 

Section 204 of the Act and Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 

http://www.mchl.co.in/
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Rules, 2014 read with other applicable provisions. 

 

The Report confirms that the Company had complied with the statutory provisions listed under 

Form MR-3 and the Company also has proper board processes and compliance mechanism. The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. In terms 

of the provisions of Section 204(1) of the Act.  

 

The Secretarial Audit Report in Form MR-3 given by Secretarial Auditor for the financial year 

ended March 31, 2024 are is annexed to this Report as Annexure IV. This report is unqualified 

and self-explanatory and does not call for any further comments / explanations. 

 

Cost Auditor and its report  

 

The Company is not required to appoint the Cost Auditor in pursuant to the provisions of Section 

148 of the Act read with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as Company is not 

required to maintain the Cost Records as specified by the Central Government as per Section 

148(1) of the Act. 

 

Internal Auditor 

 

During the year under review, M/s. Jain S. & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm 

Registration Number: 019665C) has acted as Internal Auditors of your Company. Audit 

observations, if any, given by Internal Auditors, corrective actions thereon are periodically 

presented to the Audit Committee of the Board. 

 

Internal Financial Control 

 

The Company has in place adequate Internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 

Statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weaknesses in 

the design or operation were observed. The Company has policies and procedures in place for 

ensuring orderly and efficient conduct of its business and operations including adherence to the 

Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its Assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and 

errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and the timely preparation of 

reliable financial information. The details of internal control systems are given in the Management 

Discussion and Analysis Report attached as Annexure I to this Report. 
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Reporting of frauds by Auditors 

 

During the year under review, none of the abovesaid Auditors have reported any instances of frauds 

committed in the Company by its Officers or Employees to the Audit Committee under Section 

143(12) of the Act, details of which needs to be mentioned in this Report. 

 

Corporate Governance  

 

It has always been the company endeavors to excel through better corporate governance and fair 

and transparent practices and many of which has always been in place even before they were 

mandated by the law of land. As a responsible Corporate, the Company is committed to maintain 

the highest standards of Corporate Governance and believes in adhering to the best corporate 

practices prevalent globally. A detailed Report on Corporate Governance pursuant to the 

requirements of Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the Listing Regulations is attached as 

Annexure II to the Board’s Report and forms part of this Report. A certificate from the Secretarial 

Auditor confirming compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in 

Clause E of Schedule V to the Listing Regulations is attached to the Corporate Governance Report. 

 

The Company has obtained a Certificate pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V(C) of the Listing 

Regulations from M/s. Vipin Shukla & Company, Company Secretaries, that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of Companies by Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such Statutory Authority. The certificate forms part of the Corporate 

Governance report. 

  

Loans, Guarantees and Investments  

 

The Company has not given any loans or guarantees covered under the provisions of section 186 

of the Act. The detail of the investments made by the Company are given in the notes to the 

Financial Statements. 

 

Conservation of Energy and Technology Absorption 

 

The information on energy conservation and technology absorption in accordance with the 

provisions of Section 134(3)(m) of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 

2014 are given in Annexure III, annexed to this Report. 

 

Foreign Exchange Earning and Outgo 

 

There is no foreign exchange earnings and outgo during the year under review. 



39 

 

 

Extract of Annual Return 

 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual 

Return (MGT-7) of the Company as on March 31, 2024 is available on Company’s website and 

can be accessed at https://mchl.co.in/annual_report.php.  

 

Managerial Remuneration 

 

The information required in pursuant to Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rule 5(1) of The 

Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 in respect of 

employees of the Company is attached hereunder as Annexure V and forms a part of the Boards’ 

Report. 

 

There are no employees who are in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limit specified under 

Section 134(3)(q) of the Act read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

RBI Guidelines for Non-Banking Financial Companies 

 

The Company has observed all the prudential norms prescribed by the Reserve Bank of India. The 

Schedule as required in terms of Paragraph 13 of Non-Banking Financial Companies Prudential 

Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015 is annexed with the Financial Statements. 

 

Provisions of Sexual Harassment at the Work place 

 

The provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at the Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

and Redressal) Act, 2013 is not attracted on the Company, However the Company has a voluntary 

policy towards Prevention of Sexual Harassment of Women employees of the Company and has 

set up a mechanism for registering and prompt Redressal of complaints received from all 

permanent and temporary employees and staffs. Pursuant to the requirements of Section 22 of the 

said Act read with rules thereunder, the Company has not received any complaint of sexual 

harassment during the reporting period. 

 

Compliance with Secretarial Standards of ICSI  

 

The Company has complied with the Secretarial Standard-1 on ‘Meetings of the Board of 

Directors’ and Secretarial Standard-2 on ‘General Meetings’ prescribed under the provisions of 

the Act as issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’. 

 

 

https://mchl.co.in/annual_report.php
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Industrial Relations 

 

During the year under review, industrial relations remained harmonious at all our offices.  

 

Material Changes & Commitments in financial position  

 

No material changes and commitments have occurred from the date of closure of the financial year 

till the date of this Report, which affected the financial position of the Company. 

 

Cautionary Note 

 

The statements forming part of the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis 

Report may contain certain forward looking remarks within the meaning of applicable laws and 

regulations. Many factors could cause the actual results, performances or achievements of the 

Company to be materially different from any future results, performances or achievements that 

may be expressed or implied by such forward looking statement 

 

General Disclosures / Declarations 

 

Your Directors states that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items 

as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review: 

 

 During the period under review the details of difference between amount of the valuation done 

at the time of one-time settlement and the valuation done while taking loan from the Banks or 

Financial Institutions along with the reasons thereof is not applicable on the Company.  

 

 During the period under review, no application is made nor any proceeding is pending under 

the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016. 

 

 Transfer of shares only in demat mode 

As per SEBI norms, all requests for transfer of securities including transmission and 

transposition requests shall be processed only in dematerialised form. Further, SEBI vide its 

circular has notified that all request for duplicate issuance, splitting and consolidation requests 

will be processed in a demat mode only. 

 

 Updating KYC details common and simplified norms for processing investor’s service 

The SEBI vide its Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated 

March 16, 2023; superseding the Circular No. 

SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/655 dated November 03, 2021 and 

subsequent clarification vide Circular No. 
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SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD_RTAMB/P/CIR/2021/687 dated December 14, 2021 has 

mandated furnishing of PAN, KYC details and nomination by holders of physical securities. 

Members are requested to submit their PAN, KYC and nomination details to the Company’s 

RTA through the forms. 
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Annexure I 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

Your directors are pleased to present the Management Discussion & Analysis Report for the 

financial year ended March 31, 2024 as stipulated under Regulation 34 (2) (e) read with Schedule 

V(B) of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirement), Regulations, 2015 (Listing 

Regulations).  

 

The management of the Company is presenting herein the overview, opportunities and threats, 

initiatives by the Company and overall strategy of the Company and its outlook for the future. This 

outlook is based on management's own assessment and it may vary due to future economic and 

other future developments in the country.  

 

ABOUT MARDA COMMERCIAL & HOLDINGS LIMITED 

 

Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited (“Marda” or “Company”), registered with the Reserve 

Bank of India (“RBI”), is a Non-Banking Financial Company operating as an NBFC (Loan 

Company) and is inter alia carrying on the business of lending, leasing, factoring, financing and 

distributing financial products. The Company offers a wide array of services / products in the 

financial services sector catering to the diverse needs of the Retail and Corporate Customers. The 

Company continues to be a Non-Deposit taking, systemically not important, Non CIC Non-

Banking Financial Company and holds the RBI certificate in this behalf. The Company has 

followed the RBI Norms as applicable and has complied with all the statutory obligations.  

 

ECONOMIC & INDUSTRY SCENARIO 

 

The Indian economy has been consistently outperforming all other leading economies over the last 

few years with respect to both GDP growth as well as other macro-economic factors. This is 

primarily backed by the government’s strong infrastructure push and slow-but-steady revival in 

private consumption as reflected in the uptick in several high frequency indicators such as Index 

of Industrial Production (‘IIP’), GST collections and system credit and deposit growth. The 

economy has also shown significant resilience to external factors such as supply chain disruptions, 

growing geopolitical tensions, inflationary pressures, and weakness in global demand, further 

underscoring the strength of its underlying fundamentals.  

 

In FY 2023-24, India continued to surpass all market estimates quarter on quarter and closed the 

financial year with 8.2% Year on Year (“YoY”) growth. We have also demonstrated strong fiscal 

consolidation in recent years with fiscal deficit for FY 2023-24 declining to 5.6% (vs originally 

budgeted at 5.9%). India’s external position also remains healthy with forex reserves touching an 
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all-time high of $651.5 Billion providing it with a comfortable import cover. Despite geopolitical 

uncertainties, Indian markets have also continued to attract healthy foreign portfolio investment of 

Rs. 3.4 lakh crore in FY 2023-24. India’s growing importance in international markets is further 

underscored by JPMorgan’s announcement regarding India’s inclusion in its emerging market debt 

index in FY 2024-25.  

 

All of these are reflected in S&P Global Ratings’ upgrade of India’s sovereign rating outlook to 

‘positive’ from ‘stable’ while retaining the rating at ‘BBB-’ in May 2024. As per the agency, the 

rating draws support from India’s sound economic fundamentals underpinning the growth 

momentum in the coming years and the expectation of broad continuity in economic reform and 

fiscal policies by the government even after the 2024 elections.  

 

The financial services segment, and in particular NBFCs & HFCs, has been a key facilitator of this 

economic growth. Credit growth has remained robust in FY 2023-24 backed by strong demand 

from consumers, the Government of India’s (“GoI’s”) push on financial inclusion, and ever-

improving access to credit by way of increasing focus on digitalisation across the industry.  

 

We believe that the Company’s principal business being investment in shares and securities, the 

Company looks forward to increased activities in this segment. However, the Management will 

continue to review the business strategy from time to time depending on the changes in the policy 

of Government and Reserve Bank of India. During the year under review favorable conditions 

prevailed in the market which have been reflected in the profitability of the Company. 

 

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

 

The biggest opportunity for financial services sector in India currently lies in the sheer size of the 

economy. India is now the 5th largest economy worldwide and well on its way to become the 3rd 

largest within this decade. The GoI’s infrastructure push, revival in private capex, growth of the 

SME ecosystem, increasing consumer demand. Further, the current credit penetration in India – 

Credit to GDP ratio – remains low at ~70% compared to other larger economies; this is expected 

to sharply increase over the next decade backed by rapidly developing digital public infrastructure 

and a notable improvement in the credit appetite seen across segments. All of this indicates a 

significant market opportunity of INR 500 lakh crore+ for all lenders in the country 

 

With the positive attitude of the Government and RBI it appears that new opportunities may open 

up for sustained growth of Investment Companies. However, the Management is not complacent 

about the future growth of the Company and constantly reviews the ups and downs of the market 

particularly bearing in mind that the Company is a small sized NBFC and there are plenty of 

obstacles which may hinder its growth. 
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In the past few years, the increased competition from banks in the retail finance segment has led 

to excess diversification by NBFC’s from their core business activities. The sector has witnessed 

introduction of various innovative products such as used vehicles financing, small personal loans, 

three-wheeler financing, IPO financing, finance for tyres & fuel, asset management, mutual fund 

distribution and insurance advisory, etc. Besides, NBFCs are aspiring to emerge as a one-stop shop 

for all financial services. 

 

SEGMENT-WISE OR PRODUCT WISE PERFORMANCE 

 

Currently, the Company deals in single segment only. There is no other reportable operating 

segment as required by Ind AS -108. 

 

OUTLOOK  

 

As earlier stated, not only World Bank but other authorities also appear to be optimistic about the 

growth potential of India’s economy. The financial results of the year under review have improved 

and it is expected that the current year may produce even better results barring unforeseen 

circumstances. 

 

Your company is fully aware that the opportunities in the infrastructure and real estate will be 

many and diverse in nature. While this provides impetus for our sustainable growth, your company 

is also duly careful that amongst the multiple choices of attractive businesses available we always 

make the right choice. Your company’s business model and its risk management policies and 

mechanism are being constantly reviewed and upgraded to ensure this. 

 

RISKS AND CONCERNS 

 

As stated earlier, the Company’s business is very much dependent on economic and fiscal policies 

of the Government and RBI. The Management critically examines the ups and downs of the Market 

and this is a matter of constant concern for the Management. The business strategy needs to be 

reviewed and corrected suitably to meet the changed situation. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS AND THERE ADEQUECY 

 

The Company has proper and adequate system of internal control to ensure that all assets are 

safeguarded and protected against loss from unauthorized use or disposition and that transactions 

are authorized, recorded and reported correctly. The Company has effective system in place for 

achieving efficiency in operations, optimum and affective utilization of resources, monitoring 

thereof and compliance with applicable laws. Comprehensive audit of functional areas and 

operations of the Company are undertaken to examine the adequacy of and compliance with 
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policies, plans and statutory requirements. Significant observations and follow up actions thereon 

are reported to the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee reviews adequacy and effectiveness 

of the Company’s internal control environment and monitors the implementation of audit 

recommendations. The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors comprising Independent 

Directors also review the system at regular intervals. 

 

OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE AND FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE  

 

Following are the financials highlights of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2023 on a 

comparable consolidated basis. 

 (₹ in Lacs)  

Particulars 2023-2024 2022-2023 

Total Revenue 407.77 198.52 

Total expenses 160.16 191.36 

Profit /(Loss) Before Tax 247.61 7.16 

Profit /(Loss) After Tax 261.13 (14.97) 

 

MATERIAL DEVELOPMENT IN HUMAN RESOURCE / INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS 

FRONT INCLUDING NUMBER OF PEOPLE EMPLOYED 

 

The Management maintains a healthy relationship with its employees at all levels. However, the 

number of employees in the company is low but with the positive growth of operations, the 

management believes the employee base to grow. The Company continues to give priority to its 

human assets. The Company provides a fair and equitable work environment to all its employees. 

The Company is working continuously to create and nurture an atmosphere which is highly 

motivated and result oriented. The Company follows 360degree feedback to ensure the satisfaction 

of its people. As on March 31, 2024, the Company is having Five employees on roll.   

 

CHANGES (CHANGE OF 25% OR MORE) IN SIGNIFICANT KEY FINANCIAL 

RATIOS AND RETURN ON NET WORTH 

 

As per the latest amendment as introduced by SEBI in SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure 

Requirement) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018 on May 09, 2018 effective from April 01, 2019, 

new sub-clause (i) has been inserted in Clause I in Part B of Schedule V of Listing Regulations 

according to which the listed entity shall provide the details of significant changes (i.e. change of 

25% or more as compared to the immediately previous financial year) in key financial ratios, along 

with the detailed explanations thereof, including: 
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Ratios As on 

31.03.2024 

As on 

31.03.2023 

Variances 

in % 

Reasons from 

variances 

Current Ratio 16.94 35.31 -52.02 Current ratio decrease 

due to increase in current 

liabilities and taxes. 

Debt - Equity Ratio 0.23 0.25 -6.86 Debt equity ratio 

increased due to increase 

in Equity. 

Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Return on Equity 

(ROE) 

4.04% 0.03% N.A. N.A. 

Inventory Turnover 

Ratio 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Trade Receivables 

Turnover Ratio 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Trade Payables 

Turnover Ratio 

N.A. N.A. N.A. N.A. 

Net Capital 

Turnover Ratio 

0.62 0.33 86.31% Net Capital Turnover 

Ratio improve due to 

increase in turnover as a 

result of sale of 

investment. 

Net Profit Ratio 60.72% 3.61% 1583.71% Net Profit Ratio improve 

due to increase in profit 

as a result of sale of 

investment.  

Return on Capital 

Employed (ROCE) 

4.47% 1.40% 218.45% Return on capital 

employed improve due 

to increase in profit as a 

result of sale of 

investment. 

Return on 

Investment 

2.90% 0.02% N.A. N.A. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

 

Statements made in this Management Discussion and Analysis describing the Company’s current 

position and expectations for the future may be “forward looking statements” within the meaning 

of the applicable laws and regulations. Actual results may differ substantially or materially from 
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those expressed or implied. Important developments that could affect the Company’s operation 

include the downtrend in the industry – global or domestic or both, significant changes in political 

and economic environment in India. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF ACCOUNTING TREATMENT IN PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL 

STATEMENTS 

 

The Company has followed the guidelines of accounting standards as mandated by the Central 

Government in preparation of its financial statements. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

Lalit Agarwal                                                                                                                                                         

Director 

(DIN 00109920) 
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Annexure II 

Report of the Directors on Corporate Governance 

 

The Directors present the Company’s Report on Corporate Governance for the year ended March 

31, 2024. 

 

COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Your Company is always committed to good Corporate Governance and application of best 

management practices for safeguarding the interest of all stakeholders. Strict adherence to the 

principles of fairness, transparency, professionalism, accountability and propriety in total 

functioning of the Company, are pre-requisites for attaining sustainable growth in this competitive 

corporate world.  

 

Your company seeks to focus on regulatory compliances, complying with all the provisions of 

Listing Regulations and applicable Corporate Governance Norms with all the modifications within 

the prescribed time, thereby giving stress on essential pre-requisites of corporate governance.  

 

A Report on compliance with the principles of Corporate Governance as prescribed in The 

Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBI) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (hereinafter referred to as “Listing Regulations”) is given below: 

 

ETHICS POLICIES 

 

We strive to conduct our business and strengthen our relationships in a manner that is dignified, 

distinctive and responsible. Therefore, we have adopted various codes and policies to carry out our 

duties in an ethical manner. Some of these codes and policies are: 

 

 Code for Board of Directors and Board Committees 

 Code of Business Conduct and Ethics for Directors / Senior Management Personnel  

 Code of Conduct for Prohibition of Insider Trading 

 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS (BOARD) 

 

The Board is accountable to shareholders and other stakeholders and is responsible for protecting 

and generating sustainable value over the long term. In fulfilling their role effectively, Board of 

Directors of the Company:  
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- guide, review and approve corporate strategy and financial planning, including major capital 

expenditures, acquisitions and divestments; 

- monitor the effectiveness of the company’s governance practices, environmental practices, 

and social practices, and adhere to applicable laws; 

- embody high standards of business ethics and oversee the implementation of codes of conduct 

that engender a corporate culture of integrity; 

- oversee the management of potential conflicts of interest, such as those which may arise 

around related party transactions; 

- oversee the integrity of the company’s accounting and reporting systems, its compliance with 

internationally accepted standards, the effectiveness of its systems of internal control, and the 

independence of the external audit process; 

- oversee the implementation of effective risk management and proactively review the risk 

management approach and policies annually or with any significant business change; 

- ensure a formal, fair and transparent process for nomination, election and evaluation of 

directors; 

- develop succession plans; 

- align senior management remuneration with the longer-term interests of the company and its 

shareholders; and 

- conduct an objective board evaluation on a regular basis, consistently seeking to enhance 

board effectiveness. 

 

The role of the board includes responsibilities for entrepreneurial leadership, risk management, 

strategy, securing the necessary financial and human resources and performance review. The board 

also sets the company’s values and standards, and ensures it meets its obligations to shareholders 

and others. 

 

The Board’s decisions and actions are aligned with the company’s best interests. It is committed 

to the goal of sustainably elevating the Company’s value creation. The board critically evaluates 

the company’s strategic direction, management policies and their effectiveness. It acts on an 

informed basis and in the best interests of the Company with good faith, care and diligence for the 

benefit of shareholders while having regard to all relevant stakeholders. 

 

Board Composition and other details of Directors  

 

As on March 31, 2024 the Company’s Board comprised of four directors out of which one is 

Managing Director, one is Non-Executive Director, one woman Non - Executive Independent 

Director and one Non - Executive Independent Director on the Board of the Company. The 

Management of the Company is headed by Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director, subject 

to general supervision, control and direction of the Board. The composition of the Board is in 
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conformity with Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 17 of Listing 

Regulations. 

 

The Board of Directors takes into account the interest of all Stakeholders while discharging its 

responsibilities and provides leadership and guidance to the Company’s management while 

discharging its fiduciary responsibilities thereby ensuring that the management adheres to the high 

standards of ethics, transparency and disclosures. The skills, expertise and competencies of the 

Directors as identified by the Board in the context of business of the Company, are provided in 

this Report. These skills, expertise and competencies are available in the present mix of the 

Directors of the Company. 

 

In terms of the provisions of the Act and the Listing Regulations, the Directors of the Company 

submit necessary disclosures regarding the positions held by them on the Board and / or the 

Committees of other companies with changes therein, if any, on a periodical basis.  

 

The composition of the Board and other details of the Directors as at March 31, 2024: 

 
Name of Directors 

and DIN 

Nature and Category 

of Directorship 

Directorships in other Listed 

Entities and Category of 

Directorships 

No. of other Directorships and Committees’ 

Chairmanships and Memberships in Indian Public 

Companies 

Other 

Directorship* 

Committees 

Chairmanship 

Committees 

Membership 

Mr. Daulat 

RamAgarwal 

(DIN:00586956) 

Managing Director - 

Executive 

 Nil 1 - - 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal 

(DIN:00109920) 

Non-Executive & 

Promoter Director 

 Advance Steel Tubes 

Limited: Non - Executive 

Director & Non-Independent 

Director 

 

 Sophia Exports Limited:  

Non - Executive Director & 

Non-Independent Director 

2 - 5 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar 

Bissa 

(DIN:00586715) 

Non-Executive & 

Independent Director 

 Sophia Exports Limited:  

Non - Executive Director & 

Independent Director 

1 4 1 

Ms Jyoti Bansal 

(DIN:8489503) 

Non-Executive & 

Independent Director 

 Magnum Ventures Limited 

 Bygging India Limited 

 Ajay Industrial Corporation 

Limited 

(Non-Executive & Non-

Independent Director) 

3 2 6 

 

*Excludes Directorship in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies under 

Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Alternate Directorship. 

 **Only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered. 

http://www.mca.gov.in/mcafoportal/companyLLPMasterData.do
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None of the Directors on the Board is a member in more than ten Board-level Statutory 

Committees or Chairman of more than five such Committees. 

All Independent Directors have confirmed their Independence to the Company. 

The Non- Executive Directors have no pecuniary relationship for transactions with the Company 

in their personal capacity. 

 

Number of Board Meetings 

 

The Company holds at least four Board Meetings in a year within a maximum time gap of one 

hundred and twenty (120) days between two meetings, inter alia, to review the Financial Results. 

Besides these, additional Board Meetings are convened as per business needs of the Company. All 

Directors on the Board are free to suggest any item(s) for inclusion in the agenda for consideration 

of the Board. Directors are expected to attend Board and Committees Meetings, spend the 

necessary time and meet as frequently as the situation warrants to properly discharge their 

responsibilities.  

 

Meetings of the Board are held generally at Corporate Office of the Company. During the year, 

the Board met Six (6) times on May 27, 2023; July 26, 2023; August 08, 2023, October 19, 2023, 

January 30, 2024 and March 30, 2024. 

 

All material information was circulated to the Directors before the meeting or placed at the 

meeting, including minimum information required to be made available to the Board in the 

prescribed law. Agenda papers are shared electronically and / or physically to the Directors, before 

the meetings with in the stipulated time. Comments, if any, by the Board Members / Committee 

Members in the draft minutes of the Board and Committee meetings were noted by the Board and 

/ or Board’s Committee in its next Meeting. 

 

Details of attendance of the Board of Directors 

 

Details of attendance of the Board of Directors in the Board meetings held during the FY 2023-

2024 including the last Annual General Meeting held on September 26, 2023 are as follows: 
 

S. 

No. 

Name of 

Directors 

No. of Board Meetings held during the FY 2023-2024 Whether Last 

AGM 

Attended? 

% of 

meeting 

attended 

during 

the year 

27.05.2023 26.07.2023 08.08.2023 19.10.2023 30.01.2024 30.03.2024 26.09.2023 

1 Mr. Lalit 

Agarwal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 100 

2 Mr. Ramesh 

Kumar Bissa 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 100 

3 Mr. Daulat 

Ram Agarwal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 100 
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Shareholding of Directors 

  

As per the declaration made to the Company by all the directors about their shareholding, Mr. 

Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company is holding 512500 Equity Shares in the 

Company and Mr. Lalit Agarwal, Non-Executive Director of the Company is holding 350000 

Equity Shares in the Company. Except Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal and Mr. Lalit Agarwal, no other 

Directors of the Company held any of the shares. 

 

During the year, the Company has not issued any convertible instruments. 

 

Relationship between Directors and Key Managerial Personnel 

 

There is no inter-se relationships among the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel. 

 

INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 
 

Independent Directors are Non-Executive Directors as defined under Regulation 16(1)(b) of the 

Listing Regulations read with Section 149(6) of the Act, along with the rules framed thereunder, 

including any amendments thereto. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa, Ms. Ankita Mathpal and Ms. Jyoti 

Bansal are Independent Directors of your Company. In terms of Regulation 25(8) of the Listing 

Regulations, the Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they are not aware of 

any circumstance or situation which exists or may be reasonably anticipated that could impair or 

impact their ability to discharge their duties with an objective independent judgment and without 

any external influence. Based on the declarations received from the Independent Directors, the 

Board of Directors has confirmed that they meet the criteria of independence as mentioned under 

Section 149 of the Act and Regulation 16(1)(b) of the Listing Regulations and that they are 

independent of the management. Further, the Independent Directors have in terms of Section 150 

of the Act read with Rule 6 of the Companies (Appointment & Qualification of Directors) Rules, 

2014, confirmed that they have enrolled themselves in the Independent Directors’ Databank 

maintained with the Indian Institute of Corporate Affairs (‘IICA’). All the Independent Directors 

have requisite knowledge of business, in addition to the expertise in their area of specialization. 

None of the Independent Directors of the Company serves as an Independent Director in more than 

seven listed companies. The terms and conditions of appointment of Independent Directors are 

posted on the Company’s website. 

 

Meeting of Independent Directors 

 

During the year 2023-2024, as per the requirement of Schedule IV of the Act (Code for 

Independent Directors) and Regulation 25(3) of the Listing Regulations without the attendance of 

4 Ms. Jyoti 

Bansal 

Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes Yes 100 
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Non-Independent Directors and members of the management, one separate meeting of 

Independent Directors was held on May 27, 2023 which was attended by all the Independent 

Directors. 
 
Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa was elected as the Lead Independent Director. In the meeting, the 

Directors reviewed the performance of Non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole and 

further reviewed the performance of the Chairperson of the Company taking into account the views 

of Executive Directors and Non-Executives Director and assessed the quality, quantity and the 

timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the Board.  

 

Induction and Familiarization Programmes for Board Members  

 

The Board of Directors have formulated the familiarization program for Independent Directors for 

understanding of their roles, rights, responsibilities in the Company, updates on the nature of the 

industry in which the Company Operates, Business Model, Company’s performance and future 

outlook related to business, operations, expansion, strategy, budgets, financial statements, besides 

relevant regulatory updates.  

 

These include orientation programmes upon induction of new Directors as well as other initiatives 

to update the Directors on a continuous basis. The new Directors of the Company are provided 

with an induction kit which includes the Annual Report, overview of the Company, charters of the 

Committees, annual calendar of Board and Committee Meetings, Code of Conduct, Company’s 

Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading and Code of Corporate Disclosure Practices, 

etc. 

 

The Company has also adopted a structured programme for orientation and training of Independent 

Directors at their joining and on time-to-time basis so as to enable them to understand the 

Company’s operations, business industry and environment. The web link for the details of 

Familiarization Programmes imparted to Independent Directors on cumulative hourly basis may 

be accessed at https://mchl.co.in/independent_directors.php.  

 

Tenure of Independent Directors 

 

The maximum tenure of Independent Directors is upto five consecutive years from the date of their 

appointment. The date of appointment, reappointment and tenure of the Independent Directors as 

on date of report are given below: 

 

S. 

No. 

Name of Independent 

Directors 

Date of Appointment / 

Reappointment 

Date of Completion of 

Tenure 

1 Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa 28/12/2020 27/12/2025 

https://mchl.co.in/independent_directors.php
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2 Ms. Jyoti Bansal 30/09/2022 30/09/2027 

3 Ms. Ankita Mathpal 01/06/2024 31/05/2029 

 

During the period under review, Ms. Ankita Mathpal is appointed as Additional Independent 

Directors of the Company by the Board of the Directors on the recommendations of Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee in their meeting held on May 21, 2024, subject to the approval of 

the Members of the Company in the 35th Annual General Meeting. 

 

SKILLS/EXPERTISE/COMPETENCIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS: 

 
The following is the list of core skills / expertise / competencies identified by the Board of 

Directors as required in the context of the Company’s business and that the said skills/ expertise / 

competencies are available with the Board Members: 

 

1) Business experience 

2) Industry knowledge 

3) Professional Skill and Qualification 

4) Behavioral Competencies including integrity and high ethical standard 

 

Further the Board of Directors has identified the aforementioned skills/expertise/competencies 

possessed by each member of the Board in compliance with the said regulations. In the table below, 

the specific areas of focus or expertise of individual Board members have been highlighted. 

However, the absence of a mark against a member’s name does not necessarily mean the member 

does not possess the corresponding skills/expertise/competencies. 

 

Name of Director Business 

Experience 

Industry 

Knowledge 

Professional Skill & 

Qualification 

Behavioral 

Competencies 

including integrity 

and high ethical 

standard 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal √ √ - √ 

Ms. Jyoti Bansal - √ √ √ 

Mr. Daulat Ram 

Agarwal 

√ √ - √ 

Mr. Ramesh 

Kumar Bissa 

√ √ √ √ 

 

CODES AND POLICIES 

 
The Company has established a robust framework of Codes and Policies that facilitates and reflects 
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adoption of good governance practices. The Board has adopted all applicable codes and policies 

as per the requirement of the Act, SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 and the 

Listing Regulations. The requisite codes and policies are posted on the Company’s website at 

www.mchl.co.in and references to these codes and policies have been given in this report. 

 

 Code of Conduct for Members of the Board and Senior Management  

 

The Company has formulated and implemented a Code of Conduct for all Members of the Board 

and Senior Management. Requisite annual affirmations of compliance with the Code have been 

received from the Directors and Senior Management of the Company. A declaration signed to 

this effect by Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director of the Company forms part of this 

report. The Code includes the duties of Independent Directors too and is available on the website 

of the Company. Web link of the said code is https://mchl.co.in/code_conduct.php.  

 

 Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading 

 

The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading with a view to 

regulate trading in securities of the Company by the Designated Persons. The Code of Conduct 

is applicable to all Promoters and members of the Promoter Group, Directors, KMP’s, designated 

/ identified persons, connected persons and their immediate relatives including who all are 

expected to have access to unpublished price sensitive information related to the Company. The 

Code is placed before the Board from time to time for its review and amendments thereon.  

 

 Code of Fair Disclosure and Conduct  

 

The Company has adopted a Code of Practices and Procedures for Fair Disclosure of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information with a view to facilitate prompt, uniform and universal 

dissemination of unpublished price sensitive information. Pursuant to the Insider Trading 

Regulations, the Code also includes the Policy for Determination of Legitimate Purposes. The 

Code is posted on the Company’s website at https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php.  

 

 Policy for Determination of Materiality of Events or Information 

 

The Company has adopted a Policy for Determining Materiality of Events and Information for 

the purpose of making disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. This policy aims to ensure timely and 

adequate disclosure of all material and price sensitive information to the Stock Exchanges. The 

Policy is displayed on the Company’s website at 

https://mchl.co.in/disclosures_under_regulation_46.php. 

 

 

http://www.mchl.co.in/
https://mchl.co.in/code_conduct.php
https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php
https://mchl.co.in/disclosures_under_regulation_46.php
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 Policy for Preservation of Documents 

 

The Company has a Policy for Preservation of Documents. The Policy facilitates preservation of 

documents in compliance with the laws applicable to various functions and departments of the 

Company. The Policy is displayed on the Company’s website. 

 

 Archival Policy on disclosures 

 

The Company has adopted an Archival Policy that lays down the process and manner of archiving 

the disclosures made to the Stock Exchanges under the Listing Regulations. The Policy provides 

that such disclosures shall be hosted on the website of the Company for a period of five years 

from the date of disclosure to the Stock Exchanges. The Policy also lays down the manner of 

archiving the disclosures. The Policy has been posted on the Company’s website at 

www.mchl.co.in.  

 

 Nomination & Remuneration Policy 

 

The Company has a Policy on appointment and remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel, Senior Management Personnel of the Company. The Policy contains, inter alia, 

provisions pertaining to qualification, attributes and process of their appointment and removal as 

well as components of remuneration. The Policy is displayed on the Company’s website at 

https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php.  

  

 Policy on Related Party Transactions 

 

The Board of Directors has adopted a Policy on Related Party Transactions on the 

recommendations of Audit Committee Members. The Company has in place a documented 

framework for identifying, entering into and monitoring the related party transactions. The policy 

is on the following link https://mchl.co.in/party_transaction.php.  

 

 Whistle Blower Policy and Vigil Mechanism 

 

Your Company has a Whistle Blower Policy as per the provisions of Section 177 of the Act read 

with Regulation 22 of the Listing Regulations for establishing vigil mechanism for Directors, 

employees and other stakeholders to report concerns about unethical behavior, actual or 

suspected fraud, violation of the Company’s “Code of Conduct and Ethics” or leak of 

Unpublished Price Sensitive Information of the Company. The vigil mechanism under the 

Whistle Blower Policy provides adequate safeguard against victimization of the Directors and 

the employees who avail of the mechanism and also provides for direct access to Chairman of 

http://www.mchl.co.in/
https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php
https://mchl.co.in/party_transaction.php
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the Audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases. The Audit Committee periodically 

reviews the functioning of the Policy. No personnel were denied access to the Audit Committee, 

during the period under review. The Whistle Blower Policy is available on the website of the 

Company at https://mchl.co.in/blower_policy.php.  

 

 Performance Evaluation Policy 

 

Your Company has the Performance Evaluation Policy in place and the same has been available 

on the website of the Company at https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php.  

 

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD 

 

The Board of Directors has constituted various Committees with specific terms of reference to 

ensure effective working of the Company and in compliance with the provisions of the Act, rules 

framed thereunder, Listing Regulations and other applicable regulations of SEBI. These 

Committees operates as empowered agents of the Board of Directors. There are various 

Committees of the Board of Directors which have been entrusted with adequate powers to 

discharge their roles & responsibilities. 

 

As on March 31, 2024, the Company had three Committees of the Board of Directors – Audit 

Committee, Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee. 

 

The minutes of all Committee Meetings are placed before the Board and noted by the Directors at 

the Board Meetings. The Chairman of the respective Committee(s) brief the Board about the 

summary of the discussions held in the Committee Meetings. The Board Committees request 

special invitees to join the meeting, as and when appropriate. Recommendations made by these 

Committees have been accepted by the Board. The Company Secretary officiates as the Secretary 

of the Committees. The role, composition and terms of reference of Audit Committee, Nomination 

and Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee including the number of 

meetings held during the year ended and the related attendance are as follows: 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE 

 

The management is responsible for the company’s internal controls and the financial reporting 

process while the statutory auditors are responsible for performing independent audit of the 

company’s financial statements in accordance with generally accepted auditing practices and for 

issuing report based on such audit. The Board of Directors has constituted and entrusted the Audit 

Committee with the responsibility to supervise these processes and thus ensure accurate and timely 

disclosures that maintain the transparency, integrity and quality of financial control and reporting. 

https://mchl.co.in/blower_policy.php
https://mchl.co.in/corporate_governance.php
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All members of the Audit Committee are financially literate and a majority has accounting or 

financial management expertise. 

 

Terms of Reference of Audit Committee 

 

The role, power and terms of reference of the Audit Committee as per Section 177 of the Act, 

Regulation 18 read with Part C of Schedule II of Listing Regulations and SEBI (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 are as follows: 

 

- Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and disclosure of its financial 

information to ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible; 

- Recommending the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of Auditors of 

the Company; 

- Approval of payment for any other service(s) rendered by the statutory auditors; 

- Reviewing with the management and examination of the annual financial statements and 

the auditor’s report thereon before submission to the Board of Directors for approval, with 

particular reference to: 

o matters required to be included in the director’s responsibility statement to be 

included in the board’s report in terms of Section 134(3)(c) of the Act; 

o changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;  

o major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by 

management; significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out 

of audit findings;  

o compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial 

statements;  

o disclosure of any related party transactions;  

o modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;  

- Reviewing with the management the quarterly financial statements before submission to 

the Board of Directors for approval; 

- Reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised 

through an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, etc.), the statement of funds 

utilized for purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and 

the report submitted by the monitoring agency monitoring the utilisation of proceeds of a 

public issue or rights issue or preferential issue or qualified institutions placement, and 

making appropriate recommendations to the board to take up steps in this matter, if 

required; 

- Review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of audit 

process; 

- Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions with related parties including 

omnibus approval for related party transactions; 
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- Scrutiny of inter- corporate loans and investments;  

- Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever necessary;  

- Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems; 

- Reviewing with the management performance of statutory and internal auditors and 

adequacy of the internal control systems; 

- Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the 

internal audit department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, 

reporting structure coverage and frequency of internal audit; 

- Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow up thereon; 

- Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters 

where there is suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a 

material nature and reporting the matter to the Board of Directors; 

- Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope 

of audit as well as post audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern; 

- Look into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payment to shareholders, creditors etc.; 

- Reviewing the functioning of whistle blower mechanism; 

- Approval of appointment of chief financial officer after assessing the qualifications, 

experience and background, etc. of the candidate; 

- Review compliance with the provisions of SEBI (Prohibition of Insider Trading) 

Regulations, 2015 (amended time to time), atleast once in a financial year and verify that 

the systems for internal controls are adequate and are operating effectively; 

- The Audit Committee is also required to review the management decisions and analysis of 

financial condition and results of operations, statement of significant related party 

transactions, management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the 

internal auditors, internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses, the 

appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the chief internal auditor; 

- Reviewing the utilization of loans and/ or advances from/investment by the holding 

company in the subsidiary; 

- To consider and comment on rationale, cost-benefits and impact of schemes involving 

merger, demerger, amalgamation etc., on the Company and its Shareholders; and 

- Discharge any other duties or responsibilities as may be prescribed by the applicable laws 

and any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee or 

as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. 

 

Further, pursuant to Regulation 18(2)(c) of the Listing Regulations, the Audit Committee 

is empowered to investigate any activity within its terms of reference, seek information it 

requires from any employee, obtain outside legal or other Independent professional advice 

and secure attendance of outsiders with relevant expertise, if considered necessary. Apart 

from the above, the Audit Committee also exercises the role and powers entrusted upon it 

by the Board of Directors from time to time. 
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Composition of Audit Committee 

 

The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in accordance with the provisions of 

Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations and the provisions of Section 177 of the Act. During the 

year under review, the committee met six times on May 27, 2023; July 26, 2023; August 08, 2023, 

October 19, 2023, January 30, 2024 and March 30, 2024. All the members of the Audit Committee 

are financially literate. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa, the Chairman, has expertise in accounting and 

financial management. The Chairman attended the last annual general meeting to answer 

shareholders’ queries. The composition of the Committee as on date of report and the details of 

meetings attended by the members during the period under review are given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category No. of 

Meetings 

held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa Chairman – Non - Executive 

Independent Director 

06 06 

Ms. Jyoti Bansal Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

06 06 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non - Executive Non - 

Independent Director 

06 06 

Ms. Ankita Mathpal* Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

Not eligible to attend the 

meetings during FY 2023-

2024 

* Appointed w.e.f. 01/06/2024 

 

The gap between two Audit Committee Meetings did not exceed 120 days. Necessary quorum was 

present at the above Meetings. Chief Financial Officer is permanent invitee to the Audit  

Committee’s meetings. The representatives of Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors and other 

executives, as desired by the Committee, attended the meetings as invitees. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is responsible for evaluating the balance of skills, 

experience, performance, independence, diversity and knowledge on the Board and for drawing 

up selection criteria, and appointment / reappointment procedures for both internal and external 

appointments. The Committee is also entrusted to frame its policies. 
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Terms of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 
The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee are in accordance with 

the provisions of Section 178 of the Act, Regulation 19 read with Part D of Schedule II of the 

Listing Regulations. 

 

The role of the Committee includes; 

 

- Formulation of the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and 

independence of a director and recommend to the Board of Directors a policy relating to 

the remuneration of the Directors, key managerial personnel and other employees of the 

Company; 

For every appointment of an independent director, the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee shall evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board 

and on the basis of such evaluation, prepare a description of the role and capabilities 

required of an independent director. The person recommended to the Board for 

appointment as an independent director shall have the capabilities identified in such 

description. For the purpose of identifying suitable candidates, the Committee may: 

o use the services of an external agencies, if required; 

o consider candidates from a wide range of backgrounds, having due regard to 

diversity; and 

o consider the time commitments of the candidates. 

- Formulation of criteria for evaluation of performance of Directors including Independent 

Directors and the Board of Directors; 

- Specifying the manner for effective evaluation of performance of the Board of Directors, 

its committees and individual Directors of the Company to be carried out either by the 

Board of Directors or by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee or by an 

independent external agency and review its implementation and compliance; 

- Devising a policy on diversity of Board of Directors; 

- Identifying persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in 

senior management in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend to the 

Board of Directors their appointment and removal; 

- Recommending to the Board of Directors all remuneration, in whatever form, payable to 

senior management of the Company; 

- Determining whether to extend or continue the term of appointment of an Independent 

Director of the Company, on the basis of the report of performance evaluation of 

Independent Directors of the Company; and 

- Discharge any other duties or responsibilities as may be prescribed by the applicable laws 

and any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee or as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. 
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Composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee 

 

The Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 19 of the Listing 

Regulations and the provisions of Section 178(1) of the Act. During the year under review, the 

committee met three (3) times on May 27, 2023, July 26, 2023 and August 8, 2023. Mr. Ramesh 

Kumar Bissa, Chairman, attended the last Annual General Meeting of the Company.  

 

The composition of the Committee as on date of report and the details of Meetings attended by 

the Chairman and Members during the year under review are given below: 

 

Name of the Directors Category No. of 

Meetings 

held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa Chairman – Non - Executive 

Independent Director 

03 03 

Ms. Jyoti Bansal Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

03 03 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non - Executive Non - 

Independent Director 

03 03 

Ms. Ankita Mathpal* Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

Not eligible to attend the 

meetings during FY 2023-

2024 

* Appointed w.e.f. 01/06/2024 

 

Performance Evaluation 

 

During the year, the Board conducted a formal annual evaluation mechanism for evaluating its 

performance as well as that of its committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of 

the Company. The performance of the Committees was evaluated by the Board seeking inputs 

from the Committee members. The criteria to evaluate the performance of the Board, Committees, 

Independent Directors and Non-Independent Directors commonly & majorly were; a) Board 

Composition, size, mix of skills, experience and capabilities required for the role; b) Attendance 

and deliberation in the meetings; c) Contribution / suggestions for effective functioning, 

development of strategy, board process, conflict of interest, polices and others.  

 

Performance of the Chairperson was evaluated by the Independent Directors after taking into 

account the views of all the Directors on the parameters such as Demonstration of effectiveness of 

leadership and ability to steer the Meetings, Impartiality, Commitment, Ability to keep 

shareholders’ interests in mind, Quality of discussions at the Board meetings, Use of time and 

overall efficiency of Board meetings, etc.  
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Directors were evaluated individually by the Board of Directors (except the Director himself / 

herself) on the parameters such as his / her preparedness at the Board meetings, Attendance at the 

Board meetings, Competency, Fulfilment of Functions, Ability to function as a team, Initiative, 

Integrity, Participation in Committee and General Meetings, Ability to act Objectively and 

Constructively, Abuse of position, Quality of contributions at the Board meetings, application of 

knowledge and experience while considering the strategy, etc.  

 

Independent Directors were additionally evaluated for their performance and fulfillment of criteria 

of independence, balance of skills, knowledge, experience on the Board and their independent 

judgment and independence from the Management. A Separate meeting of Independent Directors 

was also held to review the performance of Chairman of the Board and Non-Independent Directors. 

The Directors were satisfied with the evaluation results, which reflected the overall engagement 

of the Board and its Committees with the Company.  

 

Outcome of the evaluation was submitted to the Chairman of the Board. The Chairman briefed the 

outcome of the performance evaluation to the Board in its meeting. 

 

Remuneration of Directors 

 

During the period under review, the Company has paid the sitting fees Rs. 30,000 per year to its 

Non-Executive and Independent Directors of the Company i.e., within the limits prescribed in 

section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013. The Company does not have any stock option scheme. 

 

Criteria for making payment to Non-Executive Directors 

 

The Company considers the time and efforts put in by the Non-Executive Directors in deliberations 

at Board / Committee meetings. They are remunerated by way of sitting fees for attending meetings 

of the Board and Committees thereof. The criteria have been defined in the Nomination and 

Remuneration Policy of the Company. The same is displayed on Company’s website at 

http://mchl.co.in/nonexecutive_directors.php.  

  

During the FY 2023-24, the Non-Executive Directors did not have any other pecuniary relationship 

or transactions with the Company except their holdings along with their immediate relatives in 

shares of the Company, as applicable, as on March 31, 2024: 

 

Name of Non-Executive 

Directors 

Number of Share held by Non-Executive Directors and 

their relatives 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal 350000 Equity Shares held by himself 

895000 Equity Shares held by his wife i.e. Ms. Shashi 

Agarwal and 160000 Equity shares held by his son Mr. 

http://mchl.co.in/nonexecutive_directors.php
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Sadanand Agarwal a.k.a Mr. Suyash Agarwal (Promoter 

Shareholder of Company) 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa None 

Ms. Jyoti Bansal None 

Ms. Ankita Mathpal None 

 

STAKEHOLDERS RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE 

 

The Stakeholders Relationship Committee oversees various activities that lead to improve and 

effective shareholder services like review of adherence to the service standards adopted for 

shareholder services, measures taken for reducing the timelines for redressal of shareholders and 

investor’s grievances, transfer / transmission of shares, issue of duplicate share certificates, 

dematerialisation / rematerialisation of shares and other related matters. The Committee meets as 

often as required. Your Company has not received any service requests pertaining to transfer, 

transmission etc.   

 
Terms of Reference of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

The terms of reference of the Stakeholders Relationship Committee are in accordance with the 

provisions of the Act and Regulation 20 read with Part D of Schedule II of the Listing Regulations. 

 

The role of the Committee includes; 

 

- Resolving the grievances of the stakeholders of the Company, including complaints related 

to transfer/ transmission of shares, non-receipt of annual report, non-receipt of declared 

dividends, issue of new/ duplicate shares certificates etc.; 

- Review of measures taken for effective exercise of voting rights by shareholders; 

- Review of adherence to the service standards adopted by the Company in respect of various 

services being rendered by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the Company; 

- Review of the various measures and initiatives taken by the Company for reducing the 

quantum of unclaimed dividends and ensuring timely receipt of dividend warrants / annual 

reports / statutory notices by the shareholders of the Company and approve, from time to 

time; and; 

- Discharge any other duties or responsibilities as may be prescribed by the applicable laws 

and any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Stakeholders 

Relationship Committee or as may be delegated by the Board from time to time. 
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Composition of Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

 

The Committee is constituted in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 20 of the Listing 

Regulations read with Section 178(5) of the Act. During the year under review, the committee met 

five (5) times on May 27, 2023; July 26, 2023; August 08, 2023, October 19, 2023 and January 

30, 2024. Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa, Chairman, attended the last Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to address the Shareholders Queries.  

 

The composition of the Committee as on date of report and the details of Meetings attended by the 

Chairman and Members during the year under review are given below: 

 

 

Name of the Directors Category No. of 

Meetings 

held 

No. of 

Meetings 

Attended 

Mr. Ramesh Kumar Bissa Chairman – Non - Executive 

Independent Director 

03 03 

Ms. Jyoti Bansal Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

03 03 

Mr. Lalit Agarwal Non - Executive Non - 

Independent Director 

03 03 

Ms. Ankita Mathpal* Non - Executive Independent 

Director 

Not eligible to attend the 

meetings during FY 2023-

2024 

* Appointed w.e.f. 01/06/2024 

 

Investor Grievances / Complaints 

 

During the year under review, the status of investor complaints is as follows: 

 

No. of Investor Complaints 

Opening Balance Received Solved Pending 

Nil 

 

Compliance Officer  

 

As on March 31, 2024, Ms. Puja Mantri, Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the 

Company in terms of Regulation 6 of Listing Regulations. 
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT  

 

As at March 31, 2024, Ms. Nimisha Agarwal, Chief Financial Officer and Ms. Puja Mantri, 

Company Secretary & Compliance Officer of the Company are the Senior Management of the 

Company in terms of Regulation 16 (1) (d) of the Listing Regulations.  

 

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY 

 

 The Company does not have any material non-listed Indian Subsidiary Company in terms of 

Regulation 16 of the Listing Regulations. Therefore, the Company is not required to adopt policy 

for determining the Material Subsidiaries.  

 

GENERAL BODY MEETINGS 

 
The location and time of the last three Annual General Meetings and special resolutions passed 

therein are as follows: 

 

For the year 

ended 

Location Date Time Special resolutions 

transacted 

March 31, 2023 11, Crooked Lane, 

First Floor, Room No. 

7, P.S.- Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal-

700069 

26.09.2023 11:00 A.M. None  

March 31, 2022 11, Crooked Lane, 

First Floor, Room No. 

7, P.S.- Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal-

700069 

30.09.2022 09:00 A.M One i.e. 
 
Appointment of Ms. 

Jyoti Bansal (DIN 

08489503) as a 

Non-Executive, 

Independent 

Director of the 

Company 

March 31, 2021 11, Crooked Lane, 

First Floor, Room No. 

7, P.S.- Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal-

700069 

30.11.2021 11.00 A.M None 
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During the year, no special resolution was passed through postal ballot. There is no immediate 

proposal for passing a resolution through postal ballot.  

 

MEANS OF COMMUNICATION 

 

- All price-sensitive information and matters that are material to shareholders in pursuant to the 

Listing Regulations and other applicable laws are disclosed to the concerned Stock Exchange 

i.e., Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited. They are also displayed on the Company’s website at 

www.mchl.co.in.   

 

- Information like Quarterly / Half Yearly / Annual Financial Results, documents and 

information, related on significant developments in the Company made available and uploaded 

from time to time. Further, the Financial Results are published within the timeline stipulated 

under the Listing Regulations in the leading newspapers viz. The Financial Express (English) 

and Duranta Barta (Bengali). They are also hosted on the website of the Company at 

www.mchl.co.in. 

 

- Various sections of the Company’s website www.mchl.co.in, keep the investors updated on 

material developments of the Company by providing key and timely information like details of 

directors, financial results, annual reports, various policies of the Company, composition of 

various committees of the board of directors, terms and conditions for appointment of 

Independent Directors, information to shareholders including forms and procedures on various 

aspects, separate tabs for significant events. A separate section for “Disclosures under 

Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations” is created for the ease and convenience of the 

stakeholders and as mandated by the Stock Exchange under the link 

http://mchl.co.in/disclosures_under_regulation_46.php. 

 

- Company do update to its stakeholders about forms, processes and procedures as mandated and 

applicable to them for their necessary actions. The Company has also sent individual letters to 

all the Members holding shares of the Company in physical form for furnishing their PAN, 

KYC and Nomination details pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/MIRSD/MIRSD-

PoD-1/P/CIR/2023/37 dated March 16, 2023. The prescribed formats are available on the 

Company’s website under the link at http://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php.  

 

- Dispute Resolution Mechanism at Stock Exchanges (SMART ODR): SEBI vide its Circular 

dated May 30, 2022 provided an option for arbitration as a Dispute Resolution Mechanism for 

investors. As per this Circular, investors can opt for arbitration with Stock Exchanges in case 

of any dispute against the Company or its RTA on delay or default in processing any investor 

services related request. In compliance with SEBI guidelines, the Company had sent 

http://www.mchl.co.in/
http://www.mchl.co.in/
http://www.mchl.co.in/
http://mchl.co.in/disclosures_under_regulation_46.php
http://mchl.co.in/investor_information.php
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communication intimating about the said Dispute Resolution Mechanism to all the Members 

holding shares in physical form.  

 

- During the period under review, the Company is not required to display any official news 

releases, investor’s meets and presentations made to the institutional investors or to the analysts. 

 

GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS INFORMATION 

 

Particulars General Shareholder Information 

Date July 29, 2024 

Day Monday 

Time 11:00 A.M. 

Venue 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal-700069, India 

Financial Year  1st April to 31st March 

Date of Book Closure July 23, 2024 to July 29, 2024 

Dividend payment date Not Applicable 

Listing on Stock Exchange Listed at Calcutta Stock Exchange (CSE) 

Located at 7 Lyons Range, Kolkata 

 

The Annual listing fees for equity shares have been paid to the 

aforesaid Stock Exchange for FY 2024-25 before the due date. 

Demat ISIN Number for 

Equity Shares 

INE912C01014 

Market Price Data  

 

Performance in 

comparison to board -

based indices  

Though the Shares of the Company are listed with CSE and are not 

traded among Shareholders hence market price data is not available. 

As such to the best our information, no exchange quote is available 

for the Current Year. 

Suspension of Securities Not Applicable 

Registrar to an issue and 

Share Transfer Agents 

M/s. Niche Technologies Pvt. Ltd. 

SEBI Registration No.: INR000003290 

CIN: U74140WB1994PTC062636 

Registered Address: 3A, Auckland Place, 7th Floor, Room No. 7A & 

7B, Kolkata - 700017, India 

Mobile No.: 913322806616 

Email ID: nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com  

Website: nichetechpl.com      

Share Transfer System 

and other related matters 

Shareholders’ service requests are handled by Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent and are affected timely, if all the documents are valid 

and in order.  

mailto:nichetechpl@nichetechpl.com
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Members holding equity shares of the Company in physical form are 

requested to get their equity shares converted into demat / electronic 

form to get inherent benefits of dematerialisation and also considering 

that physical transfer of equity shares / issuance of equity shares in 

physical form have been disallowed by SEBI.  

 

The Company has obtained a yearly certificate from a Company 

Secretary in Practice confirming the issue of share certificates for 

transfer, sub-division, and consolidation etc., and submits a copy 

thereof to the Stock Exchanges in terms of Regulation 40(9) of Listing 

Regulations. Further, the Compliance Certificate under Regulation 

7(3) of the Listing Regulations, confirming that all activities in 

relation to both physical and electronic share transfer facility are 

maintained by Registrar and Share Transfer Agent registered with the 

SEBI is also submitted to the Stock Exchange on yearly basis. 

 

The shareholders may also write to the Company at its registered 

office for any grievances / share transfer related matters to enable the 

Company to get the matter sorted out expeditiously. 

Address for 

Correspondence / Plant 

Locations 

Registered Office: 

11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal-700069, India 

 

Corporate Office:  

81, Functional Industrial Estate, Patparganj, Delhi – 110092, India 

 

Telephone No.: 011-43041400  

Email: info@mchl.co.in  

Outstanding Global 

Depository Receipts 

(GDR) / American 

Depository Receipts 

(ADR) / Warrants or any 

Convertible Instruments 

that likely may impact on 

equity. 

The Company does not have outstanding Global Depository Receipts 

(GDR) / American Depository Receipts (ADR) / Warrants or any 

Convertible Securities or instruments that likely may impact on 

equity. 

Disclosure on Commodity 

Price Risk or Foreign 

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members 

about the Risk assessment, mitigation plans and periodical reviews 

faced by the Company. Risk based internal audit plan is approved by 

mailto:info@mchl.co.in
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Exchange Risk and 

Hedging Activities 

the Audit Committee which also reviews adequacy and effectiveness 

of the Company’s internal financial controls. The Audit Committee is 

periodically briefed on the steps taken to mitigate the risks. The 

Company does not indulge in commodity hedging activities. 

Credit Rating Not Applicable 

 

Distribution of Shareholding / Shareholding Pattern as at March 31, 2024 

 

Following is the Shareholding Pattern of the Company as at March 31, 2024: 

 

Category No. of Shares % of holding 

Promoter & Promoter Group 

Domestic Companies 

Indian Public 

5940900 

3544700 

515000 

59.40 

35.45 

5.15 

Total 10000600 100.00 
 

Dematerialization of 

shares and liquidity 

The Equity Shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in 

dematerialized form. The dematerialised shares are transferred 

directly to the beneficiaries by the Depositories i.e., National 

Securities Depositories Limited (NSDL) and Central Depository 

Services (India) Limited (CDSL) with no involvement of the 

Company. 

 

Shares held in As at March 31, 2024 

Shares Percentage (%) 

Physical Form 2145000 21.45 

Electronic from NSDL 7080600 70.80 

Electronic from CDSL 775000 7.75 

 

As on March 31, 2024, Company’s Shares were held in 

dematerialized form. 

 

OTHER DISCLOSURES 

 

Related-party transactions 
 
During the year under review, the Company has not entered into any materially significant related 

party transactions which have potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. All 
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related party transactions entered into during the year were on arm’s length basis in the ordinary 

course of business and were in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Act, Listing 

Regulations and Indian Accounting Standards. Further, the transactions with related parties have 

been shown in the Notes to the Accounts of the Company”. 

 

Fees paid to Auditors  

 

The total fees paid by the Company for the financial year 2023-2024 to M/s. M/s Multi Associates, 

Chartered Accountants (FRN: 509955C), Statutory Auditors aggregate ₹1.06 Lakhs. The Statutory 

Auditors does not have any network firm/ network entity.  

 

Disclosure of Pending Cases/Instances of Non-Compliance 

 

There were no non-compliances by the Company and no instances of penalties or strictures were 

imposed on the Company by the Stock Exchange or SEBI or any other Statutory Authority on any 

matter related to the capital market during the last three years. However; it may be noted that the 

Company is suspected as a shell company and undergone through the Forensic Audit which was 

conducted by the Calcutta Stock Exchange via Notice dated 26.09.2022. Further, on the basis of 

the Forensic Audit Report received, the Company is in correspondence with the concerned Stock 

Exchange to take necessary action to get the name removed of the Company from the list of 

suspected shell companies. 

 

During the year under review, there was no such non-compliance of any requirement of Corporate 

Governance Report of sub paras (2) to (10) of Listing Regulations. 

 

Risk Assessment and Mitigation Plans 

 

The Company has in place a mechanism to inform the Board members about the risk assessment 

and mitigation plans and periodical review to ensure that the critical risks are controlled by the 

executive management through means of properly defined framework. 

 

Compliance with mandatory and discretionary requirements 

 

The Company has complied with the mandatory requirements relating to Corporate Governance 

as prescribed in Regulation 17 to 27 and Regulation 46 (2) (b) to (i) and (t) of the Listing 

Regulations. However; the compliance with the discretionary requirements as exempted for 

Companies mentioned under Regulation 15(2)(a) of Listing Regulations has been adopted by the 

Company along with that discretionary requirement for Modified opinion(s) in Audit Report and 

Reporting of Internal Auditor as stated under Part E of Schedule II to the Listing Regulations is 

also complied by the Company for better governance. 
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IND-AS Compliance  

 

The Company have adopted IND-AS as required under the Act while preparing the financial 

statements of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, the management has 

ensured that IND-AS has been properly implemented and followed and there has been no deviation 

from this practice. 

 

Disclosure under Regulation 32 of Listing Regulations 

 

In pursuant to Regulation 32 of Listing Regulations, 2015, the Company submits the confirmation 

to the stock exchange on quarterly basis that the Company has not raised any amount from the 

“Public Issue or Rights Issue or Preferential Issue or Qualified Institutions Placement” during the 

period under review. 

 

Committee Recommendations 

 

During the year under review, the Board of Directors has accepted all recommendations of the 

Committees of the Board of Directors, which were mandatorily required to be made. 

 

Compliance Certificate from Practicing Company Secretary 

 

The Company has obtained a Certificate pursuant to the provisions of Schedule V(C) of the Listing 

Regulations from M/s Vipin Shukla & Company, Company Secretaries that none of the Directors 

on the Board of the Company have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as directors of Companies by Securities and Exchange Board of India or Ministry of 

Corporate Affairs or any such statutory Authority. The certificate forms part of this report. 

 

Disclosures in relation to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, 

Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 

 

No complaint was filed with the Company under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

(Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013 during the financial year ended March 31, 2024. 

Further, no complaint was pending with the Company as at the beginning and end of the FY 2023-

2024 under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and 

Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

Disclosure by Company and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’. 

 

There is no such transaction. 
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Disclosure by Company and its subsidiaries of ‘Loans and advances in the nature of loans to 

firms/companies in which directors are interested by name and amount’. 

 

There is no such transaction. 

 

DEMAT SUSPENSE ACCOUNT / UNCLAIMED SUSPENSE ACCOUNT 

 

As on March 31, 2024, there are no outstanding shares lying in the demat account suspense 

account/unclaimed suspense account. 

 

MANAGING DIRECTOR (MD) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) 

CERTIFICATION 

 

A Certificate from Mr. Daulat Ram Agarwal, MD and Ms. Nimisha Agarwal, CFO, pursuant to 

provisions of Listing Regulations, for the year under review was placed before the Board of 

Directors of the Company at its meeting held on May 21, 2024 and the same does not contain any 

adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE OF THE SECRETARIAL AUDITORS 

 

The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Secretarial Auditors confirming compliance of 

conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in Schedule V (E) of the Listing Regulations. 

The Certificate forms part of this report. 

 

DISCLOSURE OF CERTAIN TYPES OF AGREEMENTS BINDING LISTED ENTITIES 

 

In terms of clause 5A of Paragraph A of Part A of Schedule III of Listing Regulations, the 

Company has not disclosed any agreement or information that directly or indirectly or potentially 

or whose purpose and effect is to, impact the management or control of the Company. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

Lalit Agarwal                                                                                                                                                         

Director 

(DIN 00109920) 
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Annexure to the Report on Corporate Governance 

 

Declaration affirming Compliance of Code of Conduct 

 

[Pursuant to Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and 

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015] 

 

In pursuance of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015, I, Daulat Ram Agarwal, Managing Director of Marda 

Commercial & Holdings Limited, hereby declares that;  

 

 the Company has laid down a Code of Conduct for all Board Members and Senior 

Management Personnel of the Company and the same is available at the website of the 

Company viz. https://www.mchl.co.in/code_conduct.php and; 

  

 all the members of Board of Directors and Senior Management Personnel of the Company 

have affirmed compliance with the ‘Code of Conduct for the Directors and Senior 

Management’ as applicable to them, for the financial year ended March 31, 2024.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

https://www.mchl.co.in/code_conduct.php
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Certification by Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer 

(Pursuant to Regulation 17(8) read with Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

 

To, 

The Board of Directors 

Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

We, the undersigned, in our respective capacities as Managing Director and Chief Financial Officer of Marda 

Commercial & Holdings Limited to the best of our knowledge and belief certify that for the Financial Year 2023-

2024: 

 

 We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement for the financial year ended March 31, 

2024 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

 

- these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain any 

statements that might be misleading. 

- these statements together present a true and fair view of the company’s affairs and are in compliance with 

existing accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

 

 We further state that to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during 

the year under review, which are fraudulent, illegal or violate of the Company’s code of conduct. 

 

 We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls and for evaluating the effectiveness 

of the same over the financial reporting of the Company and have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit 

Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of internal controls, if any, of which we are aware and the 

steps we have taken or propose to take to rectify these deficiencies. 

 

 We have indicated, based on our most recent evaluation, wherever applicable, to the Auditors and Audit 

Committee:  

 

- significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year;  

- significant changes, if any, in the accounting policies made during the year and that the same has been 

disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and  

- instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or an employee having significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial 

reporting. 

 

 We affirm that we have not denied any personnel access to the audit committee of the Company (in respect of 

matters involving alleged misconduct) and we have provided protection to whistleblowers from unfair 

termination and other unfair or prejudicial employment practices. 

 

 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

For Marda Commercial & Holdings Limited 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

Nimisha Agarwal  

Chief Financial Officer 
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Certificate of Non-Disqualification of Directors 

(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10) (i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd. 

Reg. Off.: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor,  

Room No. 7 P.S. - Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal – 700069, India 

 

We, Vipin Shukla & Company, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined the relevant registers, 

records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors of Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd. (CIN: 

L65929WB1990PLC048280) having its Registered Office at 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7 P.S. - Hare 

Street, Kolkata, West Bengal – 700069 India (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), produced before us by the 

Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para 

C sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Director Identification 

Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary by us and explanations furnished to us 

by the Company & its officers, we hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated 

below for the Financial Year ending March 31, 2024 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed or 

continuing as Directors of Companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, 

or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

S. No. DIN Name of the Director Designation Date of 

Appointment 

1. 00109920 Lalit Agarwal Director 05/04/2000 

2. 08489503 Jyoti Bansal Independent Director 30/09/2022 

3. 00586715 Ramesh Kumar Bissa Independent Director 28/03/2020 

4. 00586956 Daulat Ram Agarwal Managing Director 16/04/2002 

 

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment/reappointment/continuity of every Director on the Board is the 

responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or 

effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 21/05/2024  

For Vipin Shukla & Company 

 

(CS Vipin Shukla) 

FCS No. 6798, COP: 18011 

FRN: S2017DE492200 

PR No. 5465/2024 

UDIN: F006798F000413041  
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Certificate on Corporate Governance 

 

To, 

The Members, 

Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd. 

Reg. Off.: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor,  

Room No. 7 P.S. - Hare Street, 

Kolkata, West Bengal – 700069 

 

We, Vipin Shukla & Company, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, have examined all the 

relevant records of Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd (CIN: L65929WB1990PLC048280) 

having its Registered Office at Reg. Off.: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, P.S.- Hare 

Street, Kolkata West Bengal-700069, India (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”), for the 

purpose of certifying compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance under Chapter V to 

the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) for the period from April 1, 2023 to March 31, 2024. 

We have obtained all the information and explanations which is to the best of our knowledge and 

belief were necessary for the purpose of certification. 

 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Management. 

Our examination was limited to procedures and implementation process adopted by the Company 

for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. This certificate is 

neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations and information 

furnished to us, we certify that the Company has complied with all the conditions of Corporate 

Governance as stipulated in the Listing Regulations. 

 

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 

Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the Management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 21/05/2024  

For Vipin Shukla & Company 

 

(CS Vipin Shukla) 

FCS No. 6798, COP: 18011 

FRN: S2017DE492200 

PR No. 5465/2024 

UDIN: F006798F000413116  
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Annexure III 

 

Energy Conservation, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exchange Earnings and 

Outgo 

 

[Pursuant to Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the 

Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014] 

 

For the year ended March 31, 2024 

 

A. CONSERVATION OF ENERGY: 

 

i. the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy: 

 

Energy efficiency is a cornerstone for positive impact on environment and sustainable 

growth. The Company continued to improve across all facets of energy management. The 

Company is continuously undertaking various initiatives towards green energy thereby 

contributing towards clean environment. Continuous efforts and initiatives are being 

planned in the coming year in this direction. 

 

The Company is making all efforts to put stress on energy conservation that idle time is 

reduced to bare minimum. Below measures have also led to power saving, reduced 

maintenance time and cost, improved hygienic conditions and consistency in quality and 

improved productivity.  Some of the energy conservation measures adopted were:   

 

 Conventional light replacement with LED light   

 Improving efficiency on critical resources like water and energy by doing water 

recoveries and optimizing energy consumption.  

 Optimizing the resource consumptions and minimizing wastages by automations and 

controls.  

 In off –hours, lights in work premises is kept off 

 Installation of energy efficient ceiling fans  

 

ii. the steps taken by the company for utilizing alternate sources of energy 

 

The Company is in process of searching alternate sources of energy. 

 

iii. the capital investment on energy conservation equipment’s: Nil 
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B. TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION: 

 

i. the efforts made towards technology absorption, adaptation and innovation: Nil 

ii. the benefits derived as a result of the above efforts: NA 

iii. Details of technology imported during last three years:  

a) Technology Imported: NA 

b) Year of Import: NA 

c) Has technology been fully absorbed: NA 

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where this has not taken place: NA  

iv. the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Nil  

 

C. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS & OUTGO: 

 

During the under review there is nil Foreign Exchange earnings and outgo. 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

Lalit Agarwal                                                                                                                                                         

Director 

(DIN 00109920) 
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Annexure IV 

 

Form No. MR-3 

Secretarial Audit Report for the Financial Year ended 31.03.2024 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

To, 

The Members, 

M/s Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd 

Reg. Off.: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, 

P.S.- Hare Street, Kolkata, West Bengal-700069 

 

We Vipin Shukla & Company, a firm of Practicing Company Secretaries, have conducted the 

secretarial audit of the compliance with applicable statutory provisions and adherence to good 

corporate practices by Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd (hereinafter called “the Company”). 

Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the 

corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Auditor’s responsibility 

 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the compliance of the applicable laws and 

maintenance of records based on audit. We have conducted the audit in accordance with the 

applicable Auditing Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India. The 

Auditing Standards require that the Auditor shall comply with statutory and regulatory 

requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about compliances 

with applicable laws and maintenance of records. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, covering April 01, 2023 to March 31, 2024 (“the audit period”), the 

Company has, complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 

has proper Board processes and compliance mechanisms in place to the extent, in the manner and 

subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

 

i. The Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder; 

iii. The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

iv. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made thereunder 
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to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment and Overseas Direct Investment (External Commercial 

Borrowings are not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

v. The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board 

of India Act, 1992 (‘the SEBI Act’): - 

a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; 

c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 

2014 and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat 

Equity) Regulations, 2021 (not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 

2008 (not applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009 

(not applicable to the Company during the audit period) and; 

h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998 (not 

applicable to the Company during the audit period). 

 

We have also examined the compliances with the applicable clauses of the following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards issued by ‘The Institute of Company Secretaries of India’. 

(ii) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“the Listing Regulations”) and amendments made thereunder 

and the Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Calcutta Stock Exchange of 

India Limited; 

 

As confirmed by the Management, the compliances of Environmental Laws, Labour Laws & other 

Specific Laws to the extent applicable, according to the industry to which Company belongs, are 

identified and reviewed by the Management or independent professionals and hence such laws are 

not analysed in this audit. 

 

The compliances by the Company of applicable financial laws, like direct and indirect tax laws, 

has not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory 

auditor and other designated professionals. 

 

No such instances were observed during the period. However, it may be noted that the Company 

is suspected as a shell company and undergone through the Forensic Audit which was conducted 

by the Calcutta Stock Exchange via Notice dated 26.09.2022. Further, on the basis of the Forensic 

Audit Report received, the Company is in correspondence with the concerned Stock Exchange to 
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take necessary action to get the name removed of the Company from the list of suspected shell 

companies. 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive 

Directors, Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition 

of the Board of Directors and/or KMPs’ that took place during the audit period were carried out in 

compliance with the provisions of the Act and Listing Regulations. 

 

Adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent in a prescribed timeline, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 

information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

 

We further report that during the audit report, 

 

There were adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the size and 

operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, 

regulations and guidelines. 

 

We further report that during the audit period the company has not undergone any event / action 

having a major bearing on the company’s affair in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, 

regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 21/05/2024  

For Vipin Shukla & Company 

 

(CS Vipin Shukla) 

FCS No. 6798, COP: 18011 

FRN: S2017DE492200 

PR No. 5465/2024 

UDIN: F006798F000412599 

 

Note: This report is to be read with ‘Annexure-A’ which forms an integral part of this report. 
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Annexure-A 

 

To, 

The Members, 

M/s Marda Commercial & Holdings Ltd 

Reg. Off.: 11, Crooked Lane, First Floor, Room No. 7, 

P.S.- Hare Street, Kolkata, West Bengal-700069 

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report (MR-3) of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

Maintenance of Secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

 

We have followed the audit practices and process as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in Secretarial records. I believe that the 

process and practices, we have followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

 

I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company and believe on the audited balance sheet and audited report given by the auditors 

of the company. 

 

Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of 

laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

 

The Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 

procedure on test basis. 

 

The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor 

of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the 

Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

Place: New Delhi 

Date: 21/05/2024  

For Vipin Shukla & Company 

 

(CS Vipin Shukla) 

FCS No. 6798, COP: 18011 

FRN: S2017DE492200 

PR No. 5465/2024 

UDIN: F006798F000412599 
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Annexure V 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES PURSUANT TO SECTION 134(3)(q) OF THE 

COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT 

AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014. 

 

Information as per Rule 5(1) of chapter XIII, Companies (Appointment and Remuneration 

of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014. 

 

The Ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median remuneration of the employees of 

the Company for the financial year 2023-24 as well as the percentage (%) increase in remuneration 

of each Director, Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary during financial year 2023-24: 

 

 

S. 

No. 

Names Designation Remuneration 

(₹ in Lakhs) 

(+/-) 

Remuneration 

(%) 

Ratio of 

remuneration of 

each Director to 

median 

remuneration of 

employees 

1 Mr. Lalit 

Agarwal 

Non-Executive 

Director & Non- 

Independent 

Director 

- - - 

2 Mr. Ramesh 

Kumar Bissa 

Non-Executive & 

Independent 

Director 

0.10 - - 

3 Ms. Jyoti 

Bansal 

Non-Executive & 

Independent 

Director 

0.30 - - 

4 Mr. Daulat 

Ram Agarwal 

Managing 

Director 

6.00 - - 

5 Ms. Nimisha 

Agarwal 

Chief Financial 

Officer 

2.00 - - 

6 Ms. Puja 

Mantri 

Company 

Secretary & 

Compliance 

Officer 

1.44 - - 
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Notes: 

 

A. Calculation based on annualized salary. 

B. Salary includes bonus amount. 

C. Nil remuneration is paid to any Non-Executive director & Non- Independent Director during 

the period 

D. The Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) including Managing Directors (MD) was 

Rs. 1,44,000/- in the financial year 2023-2024. 

 

E. The Median Remuneration of Employees (MRE) excluding Managing Directors (MD) was 

Rs. 87,000/- in the financial year 2023-2024. 

 

F. The number of permanent employees in the rolls of the company as on 31.03.2024 was 5. 

 

G. The Company has a Nomination & Remuneration Policy in place, and it is strictly followed 

for fixation and payment of remuneration to the managerial personnel and other employees 

of the company. The policy has been developed with adherence to the Companies Act, 2013 

and all other statutes as applicable.   

 

H. During the Financial year 2023-2024 one employee received remuneration in excess of the 

highest paid Director. 

 

I. There is no percentage increase in median remuneration of employees during F.Y 2023-

2024. 

 

J. There is no change in salaries paid to employees in the last financial year. 

 

K. The remuneration provided is as per the remuneration policy as approved by the Nomination 

& remuneration Committee of the Company. 

 

 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 

 

 

Delhi, May 21, 2024 

 

Daulat Ram Agarwal 

Managing Director 

(DIN 00586956) 

Lalit Agarwal                                                                                                                                                         

Director 

(DIN 00109920) 
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